Public Document Pack
Please Contact

Will Baines

Extension

01653 600666 Ext: 43228

Date of Publication

Wednesday 15 January 2020

E Mail

will.baines@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Thursday 23 January 2020 at 6.30 pm
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton

Agenda
1

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
The Chairman to inform Members of the Public of the emergency evacuation
procedure.

2

Apologies for absence

3

Urgent Business
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of
the Local Government Act 1972.

4

Minutes of the meeting held on 21st November 2019

5

Declarations of Interest

(Pages 3 - 6)

Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

6

Chair's Announcements

PART 'A' ITEMS - MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS OR
MATTERS DETERMINED BY COMMITTEE

7

Second Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Reports 2019/20 (Pages 7 20)

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

continuing to do what matters for Ryedale

8

Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 - Consultation

(Pages 21 - 26)

9

Grant Thornton External Audit Plan

(Pages 27 - 44)

10

Update on the use of Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
50)

11

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
2020/21
(Pages 51 - 98)

12

Timetable of Meetings 2020-21

13

O&S Workplan

14

Dates for Future Working Party Meetings.
-

15

Universal Credit
Equalities

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

(Pages 45 -

(Pages 99 - 104)
(Pages 105 - 106)

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 4

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
on Thursday 21 November 2019
Present
Councillors Clark (Chairman), Garbutt Moore, Middleton, Raine and Raper
In Attendance
Simon Copley, Tony Galloway, Christine Phillipson and Margaret Wallace

Minutes
68

Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from Councillor Brackstone, Councillor Cussons and
Councillor Oxley.

69

Minutes of the meetings held on 24th October & 4th November 2019
Decision
That the minutes of the meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on
24th October be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

Voting Record
5 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions

70

Urgent Business
There were no items of urgent business.

71

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

72

Chair's Announcements
There were no announcements from the Chairman.

73

Standards Complaints Overview and Annual Report
Considered – Report of the Deputy Monitoring Officer.
Decision

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

1

Page 3

Thursday 21 November 2019

That the report be noted.

Voting Record
5 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions
74

Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review Letter 2019
Considered – Report of the Head of Customer Services (Interim).
Decision
That the 2019 Annual review letter be noted.

Voting Record
5 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions
75

Customer Complaints and Compliments Q2 2019/20
Considered – Report of the Head of Customer Service (Interim).
Decision
That Members note the report on the complaints and compliments received
during quarter 2 of the reporting cycle.

Voting Record
5 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions
76

Performance Report Q2 2019/20
Considered – Report of the Deputy Chief Executive.
Decision
1.That the progress report be noted.
2.Minuted points raised in the report were noted.
3.Amber or red indicators require an Officer report at Overview and Scrutiny.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

2

Page 4

Thursday 21 November 2019

Voting Record
5 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions
77

Decisions from other Committees
Considered – Minutes of the Policy and Resources Committee held on 14
November 2019.
Decision
That the minutes be noted.

Voting Record
5 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions
78

O & S Workplan
The Chairman suggested a working party be created to look at the Overview
and Scrutiny work plan in the New Year to enable new Members to participate
.

79

Exempt item
Resolved
That under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972 (as amended), the public be excluded from the meeting for the
following items as they contain information relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information).

Voting Record
5 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions

80

Provision of Learn to Swim Programme - Compensatory Payment

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

3

Page 5

Thursday 21 November 2019

Considered – Report of the Deputy Chief Executive.
Decision
Overview and Scrutiny notes that no new information has been provided by
Everyone Active since the previous discussion, therefore Overview and
Scrutiny see no need to change the previous decision and recommends to
Policy and Resources that the previous decision should be upheld.
Should Policy and Resources wish to pursue a different course of action then
Overview and Scrutiny be asked to carry out further investigations.

Voting Record
5 For
0 Against
0 Abstentions
81

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.
There being no other business, the meeting closed at 8.25pm.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

4

Page 6

Thursday 21 November 2019

Agenda Item 7

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

23 JANUARY 2020

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

SECOND INTERNAL AUDIT AND COUNTER FRAUD
PROGRESS REPORTS 2019/20

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The report provides an update on internal audit and counter fraud work delivered in
2019/20.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended the Committee note the work undertaken by internal audit and the
counter fraud team in the year to date.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To enable the Committee to fulfil its responsibility for considering the outcome of
internal audit and counter fraud work.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The Council will fail to comply with proper practice requirements for internal audit and
the Council’s Audit Charter if the results of audit work are not considered by an
appropriate committee. Overview and Scrutiny Committee is the committee designated
with responsibility for receiving internal audit reports at Ryedale District Council.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The work on internal audit and counter fraud supports the council’s overall aims and
priorities by promoting probity, integrity and honesty and by helping support the council
to become a more effective organisation.

5.2

The work of internal audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
and relevant professional standards. These include the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS) and Cipfa guidance on the application of those standards in Local
Government. In accordance with the standards, the Head of Internal Audit is required
to report on the results of audit work undertaken to the Committee.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 7

23 JANUARY 2020

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

Since the last Committee meeting in October 2019 one internal audit review on Data
Protection and Information Security has been completed. Further information on
internal audit progress is included in annex 1.

6.2

Counter fraud work has been undertaken in accordance with the approved plan. Annex
2 provides a summary of the work undertaken so far in 2019/20 and outcomes to date.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None
b) Legal
None
c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Stuart Cutts; Assistant Director - Audit Assurance
Veritau Group
01653 600666 (ext 382)
stuart.cutts@veritau.co.uk
Jonathan Dodsworth; Assistant Director - Corporate Fraud
Veritau Group
01904 552947
jonathan.dodsworth@veritau.co.uk

Background Papers:
2019/20 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Plans

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 8

23 JANUARY 2020

Annex 1

Ryedale District Council
Internal Audit Progress Report
Period to 15 December 2019

Assistant Director - Audit Assurance: Stuart Cutts
Head of Internal Audit:
Max Thomas
Circulation List:

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Chief Finance Officer (s151)

Date:

23 January 2020

Page 9

Background
1

The work of internal audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). In accordance with the
PSIAS, the Head of Internal Audit is required to report progress against the internal
audit plan agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and to identify any
emerging issues which need to be brought to the attention of the Committee.

2

Members of the Committee approved the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 at their
meeting on the 17 April 2019. This report summarises the progress made to date in
delivering the agreed programme of work.

3

This is the second Internal Audit progress report to be received by the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee in 2019/20.

Internal Audit work completed
4

Since the last committee meeting in October 2019 one internal audit report on Data
Protection and Security has been completed. Further information on the progress on
individual audits is included in Appendix A.

5

Information on the findings from the audit finalised since the last meeting is included
in Appendix B.

Audit opinions
6

For most reports we provide an overall opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the controls under review. The opinion given is based on an assessment of the
risks associated with any weaknesses in controls identified. We also apply a priority
to all actions agreed with management. Details of the definitions used are included
in Appendix C.

Changes to the 2019/20 internal audit plan
7

Audit planning is an ongoing process. PSIAS (standard 2010 – planning) requires
that the Head of Internal Audit must ‘review and adjust the plan, as necessary, in
response to changes in the organisation’s business, risks, operations, programmes,
systems, and controls’.

8

We have agreed some small updates to the 2019/20 plan with the s151 officer and
relevant officers. Work on ICT governance and strategy (15 days) is to be moved to
2020/21 and be replaced by an audit of ICT contract management (10 days). The 5
remaining days has been used to support ongoing Fraud investigation work.

Page 10

Wider Internal Audit work
9

In addition to undertaking assurance reviews, Veritau officers are involved in a
number of other areas relevant to corporate matters:


Support to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee; this is mainly ongoing
through our attendance at meetings of the Committee and the provision of
advice, guidance and training to members as required.



Ongoing support to management and officers; we meet regularly with
management to identify emerging issues and provide advice on a range of
specific business and internal control issues. These relationships help to
provide ‘real time’ feedback on areas of importance to the Council.



Risk Management; Veritau provides support and advice on the Council’s risk
management arrangements and processes.



Investigations; Veritau have undertaken special or ad-hoc reviews or
investigations into specific issues.



Follow up of previous audit recommendations; it is important that agreed
actions are regularly and formally followed up. This helps to provide assurance
to management and Members that control weaknesses have been properly
addressed. We have followed up agreed actions either as part of our ongoing
audit work, or by separate review. We currently have no matters to report as a
result of our follow up work.

Stuart Cutts
Assistant Director – Audit Assurance
Veritau Group

January 2020

Page 11

Appendix A
Table of audit assignments to 15 December 2019
Audit
2019/20

Status

Assurance Level

Audit Committee

Strategic Risk Register
Human Resources

Planning

Data Quality – Health and Safety

Not started

Revenue and Capital Budgeting

Planning

Data Protection and Information Security

Final report

ICT – contract management

Not started

Contract Management and Procurement

Not started

Fundamental/Material Systems
Payroll and Personnel

Planning

Terms and Conditions

In Progress

Creditors

Not started

Operational / Regularity Audits
Risk Management

Planning

Policy Framework

In Progress

Relationships and agreements with other
bodies

In Progress

Projects/other
Assurance Mapping

In Progress

Follow-Ups

Ongoing

2018/19
Safeguarding

Draft Report

Page 12

Substantial Assurance

January 2020

Summary of Key Issues from audits completed to 15 December 2019; not previously reported to Committee

Appendix B

System/Area

Opinion

Area Reviewed

Date Issued

Comments

Management Actions Agreed

Data
Protection and
Security visit 1

Substantial
Assurance

The Council holds and processes
large amounts of personal and
sensitive data. Senior
management recognise there are
information governance risks with
holding this information and
appropriate practices need to be
followed.

October 2019

Strengths
The number of adverse findings has decreased
from 2 found in March 2019 to 1 on this visit.
This is the lowest level of adverse findings
observed in any previous internal audit security
visit at Ryedale House.

The procedure in the work
area where the matter was
highlighted has since been
changed so that no paperwork
should be left in desk drawers.
Each staff member now places
their working documents into a
lever arch file which should be
left within one of the lockable
cupboards at the end of the
day.

Page 13

We performed an unannounced
visit and review of Ryedale House
on 16 September 2019. The
objective of the visit was to
assess the extent to which data
was being held securely in the
Council's offices.
We have undertaken previous
visits with our last assessment
being in March 2019.

Some information had been left on desks but it
was almost exclusively manuals and other
reference information. No documents of a
sensitive nature were found on any desks.
Key areas for improvement
There was one instance where a desk was clear
but some special category data had been put in
a drawer. Whilst the drawer pedestal had been
locked, the key for the pedestal was in the
stationery tray above the drawers.

Appendix C
Audit Opinions and Priorities for Actions

Audit Opinions
Audit work is based on sampling transactions to test the operation of systems. It cannot guarantee the elimination of fraud or error. Our
opinion is based on the risks we identify at the time of the audit.
Our overall audit opinion is based on 5 grades of opinion, as set out below.

Page 14

Opinion

Assessment of internal control

High Assurance

Overall, very good management of risk. An effective control environment appears to be in operation.

Substantial Assurance

Overall, good management of risk with few weaknesses identified. An effective control environment is in operation
but there is scope for further improvement in the areas identified.

Reasonable
Assurance

Overall, satisfactory management of risk with a number of weaknesses identified. An acceptable control
environment is in operation but there are a number of improvements that could be made.

Limited Assurance

Overall, poor management of risk with significant control weaknesses in key areas and major improvements required
before an effective control environment will be in operation.

No Assurance

Overall, there is a fundamental failure in control and risks are not being effectively managed. A number of key areas
require substantial improvement to protect the system from error and abuse.

Priorities for Actions
Priority 1

A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system objectives and requires urgent attention by
management

Priority 2

A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the system objectives, which needs to be
addressed by management.

Priority 3

The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention by management.

Annex 2

Ryedale District Council
Counter Fraud Progress Report
Period to 15 December 2019

Assistant Director – Corporate Fraud: Jonathan Dodsworth
Head of Internal Audit:
Max Thomas
Circulation List:

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Chief Finance Officer (s151)

Date:

23 January 2020

Page 15

Background
1

Fraud is significant risk to the public sector. Annual losses are estimated to exceed
£40 billion in the United Kingdom.

2

Councils are encouraged to prevent, detect and deter fraud in order to safeguard
public finances.

3

Veritau are engaged to deliver a corporate counter fraud service for Ryedale District
Council. A corporate counter fraud service aims to prevent, detect and deter fraud
and related criminality affecting an organisation. Veritau deliver counter fraud
services to the majority of councils in the North Yorkshire area as well as local
housing associations and other public sector bodies.
Counter Fraud Performance 2019/20

4

Up to 15 December, the counter fraud team achieved £16.1k in savings for the
council as a result of investigative work. There are currently 12 ongoing
investigations. A summary of counter fraud activity is included in the tables below.

Page 16

COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY 2019/20
The tables below shows the total number of fraud referrals received and summarises the outcomes of investigations
completed during the year to date.

Page 17

% of investigations completed which result in a
successful outcome (for example benefit stopped or
amended, sanctions, prosecutions).
Amount of actual savings (quantifiable savings - e.g.
CTS) identified through fraud investigation.

2019/20
(As at 15/12/19)
47%

2019/20
(Target: Full Year)
30%

2018/19
(Full Year)
60%

£16,110

£20,000

£24,659

Caseload figures for the period are:

Carried forward at start of financial year
Referrals received
Referrals rejected
Number of investigations completed
Active cases and awaiting investigation1

1

As at 15/12/19 and 31/3/19 respectively.

2019/20
(As at 15/12/19)
75
27
16
15
71

2018/19
(Full Year)
54
63
27
15
75

Summary of counter fraud activity:
Activity

Work completed or in progress

Data matching

The 2018/19 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) is almost completed. No substantial cases of fraud
have been detected through the exercise.
The counter fraud team is currently gathering data for the 2019/20 NFI single person discount
review exercise.

Page 18

Fraud
detection and
investigation

The service continues to use criminal investigation techniques and standards to respond to any
fraud perpetrated against the council. Activity to date includes the following:
 Council Tax Support fraud – To date the team has received 16 referrals for possible CTS
fraud and £4.7k of savings has been identified through fraud investigation in the current
financial year. Two people have received warnings for offences in this area. There are
currently seven cases under investigation.
 Council Tax fraud – Seven referrals for council tax fraud have been received in 2019/20.
One person has been given a warning relating to fraud in this area. £6.6k in savings has been
identified in this area to date. There are currently 4 cases under investigation.
 NNDR fraud – Two referrals for NNDR fraud have been received to date.
 Internal fraud – There have been no reports of internal fraud against the council this year.
One investigation that began in 2018/19 concluded in the current financial year.
 External fraud – Two referrals have been received in 2019/20. The council was recently
targeted by a scam in which payments are made to business rate accounts with stolen credit
card details. The perpetrators then ask for the money to be refunded into a different account.

Activity

Work completed or in progress
Three councils, to our knowledge, were attacked in North Yorkshire at the same time, but
luckily the fraudulent attempt was spotted quickly and no losses were sustained.

Fraud liaison

The fraud team acts as a single point of contact for the Department for Work and Pensions and
is responsible for providing data to support their housing benefit investigations. The team have
dealt with 21 requests on behalf of the council in 2019/20.

Page 19

In May 2019, the DWP began new joint working arrangements with councils in the Yorkshire
and Humber region. Joint working involves council fraud investigation officers working with
DWP counterparts to investigate benefit fraud that affects both organisations. Three
investigations are currently ongoing with the DWP and none have been completed.
Fraud
Management

In 2019/20 a range of activity has been undertaken to support the Council’s counter fraud
framework.
 The counter fraud team alerts council departments to emerging local and national threats
through a monthly bulletin and specific alerts over the course of the year.
 In May, the council’s counter fraud transparency data was updated to include data on
counter fraud performance in 2018/19 meeting the council’s obligation under the Local
Government Transparency Code 2015.
 The council participated in the annual CIPFA Counter Fraud and Corruption Tracker
(CFaCT) survey in June 2019. The information provided has contributed to a recently
released report which provides a national picture of fraud, bribery and corruption in the
public sector and the actions being taken to prevent it.

Activity

Work completed or in progress
 In September, the counter fraud team ran a cybercrime awareness week, delivering
cybercrime awareness information to council employees through a number of bulletins
provided over the course of the week.
 In November, awareness was raised internally and with the public as part of International
Fraud Awareness Week.

Page 20

Agenda Item 8

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

23 JANUARY 2020

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 - CONSULTATION

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of the report is to seek members’ views on risk areas that should be
considered a priority for audit in 2020/21 to help inform the preparation of the annual
internal audit plan.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

Members are asked to identify any specific risk areas which they believe should be
considered a priority for audit in 2020/21.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To ensure audit resources are targeted to key risk areas and to help inform the overall
internal audit planning process.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

To comply with proper practice requirements for internal audit, the views of the
committee on council strategies, key business objectives, associated risks and risk
management processes should be considered in planning internal audit work.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The work of internal audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
and relevant professional standards. These include the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS), Cipfa guidance on the application of those standards in Local
Government and the Cipfa Statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 21

23 January 2020

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

In accordance with the PSIAS, and as acknowledged in the council’s audit charter,
“Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach
to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance
processes.”

6.2

Internal audit standards and the council’s audit charter require internal audit to draw
up an indicative audit plan at the start of each financial year. The plan must be based
on an assessment of risk. The plan is also informed by a number of factors such as
the council’s risk registers, relevant national issues and our wider audit knowledge
including the results of recent audit work. The council’s external auditors are also
consulted to avoid possible duplication of work programmes and to maximise the
overall benefit of audit activity. The draft plan will be presented to the next Overview
and Scrutiny Committee in April 2020, for approval.

6.3

Internal Audit plans cover a range of risk areas to ensure that; overall, the work enables
the team to meet the statutory requirement to provide an overall opinion on the
governance, risk management, and control framework operating in the council. These
include areas such as:






strategic risks - for example those included as key risk areas in the risk register
financial systems - which represent a high level of inherent risk due to the value
and volumes of transactions processed
corporate areas – covering areas such as governance, performance, projects and
risk
specific service reviews - particularly those which make a significant contribution
to corporate objectives and where weaknesses may represent a significant risk
value for money and efficiency.

6.4

The standards require that internal audit independently forms a view on the risks facing
the council and work to be included in the audit plan. However, there is also a
requirement to take into account the views of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
and senior council officers in forming that view. The requirement is set out explicitly at
paragraph 5.2 of the audit charter which states that internal audit should “draw up an
indicative risk based audit plan on an annual basis following consultation with the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and senior management”. Some further background
information on the standards is included in Appendix 1.

6.5

Internal audit is currently at the initial stage of planning work for 2020/21. Consultation
meetings with officers will be undertaken in February and March 2020. The purpose of
this report is to seek the views of the committee on key risks facing the council and
areas they feel should be considered for audit review in 2020/21. Table 1 below
includes some initial thoughts on possible areas for consideration. This is included to
prompt discussion and is not intended to be a definitive or complete list of areas that
could be reviewed.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 22

23 January 2020

Table 1: initial ideas for audit priorities for 2020/21
Area
Possible Work
 Areas of the Council’s Corporate Governance Framework (e.g.
schemes of delegation, constitution, complaints process)
 Strategic Planning (e.g. policies and procedures, the Council
Plan)
 Cipfa Financial Management Standards
 Risk management, disaster recovery plans and insurance
 Performance management and data quality
 Financial resilience
 Corporate ‘Health-checks’ progress- e.g. democratic services
Corporate &
 Partnership working
cross-cutting
 Procurement and contract management
 Review of the Audit Committee with latest Cipfa guidance
 Workforce planning
 Audit of counter fraud arrangements
 Information governance and data protection
 Training and development
 Customer/ ombudsman complaints
 Ethics and organisational culture
Project

Management 

Main
Financial
systems







Revenue budgeting
Capital budgeting
Payroll/personnel
General ledger, debtors, creditors
Council Tax/ NNDR & benefits



Risks relating to specific service areas (such as planning, local
plan strategy, leisure services, waste collection and recycling,
licensing, environmental health, economic development and
housing).
IT Strategy & Governance (such as information security policies,
IT risk management, supporting service development and roles
and responsibilities)
IT Information security (such as server configuration, patch
management and operating system configuration)
IT Services (such as help desk, incident management and
network availability)
Cyber security
Digitalisation / automation
ICT risks linked to any main financial system
Homelessness
Climate Change



Other areas

Overall corporate arrangements
Review of specific key council projects









OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 23

23 January 2020

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None
b) Legal
None
c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Stuart Cutts Audit Manager.
Veritau
01653 600666 (ext 382)
stuart.cutts@veritau.co.uk

Background Papers:
Internal Audit Charter – October 2019
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 24

23 January 2020

APPENDIX 1
Background
There is a statutory duty on the Council to undertake an internal audit of the effectiveness of
its risk management, control and governance processes. The Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 also require the audit takes into account public sector internal auditing
standards or guidance.
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and CIPFA’s local government
application note for the standards represent proper practice for internal audit in local
government.
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) - extracts
1100: Independence and Objectivity
The internal audit activity must be independent and internal auditors must be objective in
performing their work.
Interpretation: Objectivity requires that internal auditors do not subordinate their judgment on
audit matters to others.
1110 Organisational Independence
The chief audit executive must report to a level within the organisation that allows the internal
audit activity to fulfil its responsibilities. The chief audit executive must confirm to the board, at
least annually, the organisational independence of the internal audit activity.
1110.A1
The internal audit activity must be free from interference in determining the scope of internal
auditing, performing work and communicating results. The chief audit executive must disclose
such interference to the board and discuss the implications.
2010 Planning
The chief audit executive must establish risk-based plans to determine the priorities of the
internal audit activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals.
Interpretation: To develop the risk-based plan, the chief audit executive consults with senior
management and the board and obtains an understanding of the organisation’s strategies,
key business objectives, associated risks and risk management processes. The chief audit
executive must review and adjust the plan, as necessary, in response to changes in the
organisation’s business, risks, operations, programmes, systems, and controls.
2020 Communication and Approval
The chief audit executive must communicate the internal audit activity’s plans and resource
requirements, including significant interim changes, to senior management and the board for
review and approval.
Cipfa Local Government Application Note: In accordance with current best practice the audit
committee should ‘review and assess the annual internal audit work plan.’ The development
of the risk-based audit plan remains the responsibility of the chief audit executive after
consultation with senior management and the board, but the board should approve it.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 25

23 January 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2020
Page 27

Ryedale District Council
14 January 2020

Agenda Item 9

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

Contents
Section

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Page 28

Gareth Mills

Engagement Lead
T: 0113 200 2535

Page

1.

Introduction & headlines

3

2.

Key matters impacting our audit

4

3.

Significant risks identified

5

4.

Other risks identified

8

5.

Other matters

9

6.

Materiality

10

7.

Value for Money arrangements

11

8.

Audit logistics & team

12

9.

Audit fees

13

10. Independence & non-audit services

15

E: Gareth.Mills@uk.gt.com

Thilina De Zoysa
Engagement Manager

Appendix
A. Audit Quality – national context

17

T: 0113 200 1589
E: Thilina.De.Zoysa@uk.gt.com

Jack Walsh
Engagement In-charge
T: 0113 200 2529
E: Jack.H.Walsh@uk.gt.com

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the
Authority or all weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.
We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for,
nor intended for, any other purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members
is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

2

1. Introduction & headlines
Purpose

Scope of our audit
The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory
audit of Ryedale District Council (‘the Council’) for those charged with governance.

•

Council’s financial statements have been prepared by management with the oversight of those
charged with governance - the Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Audit (OSC)

Respective responsibilities

•

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and
end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities are also
set out in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public
Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing us as auditor of
the Council. We draw your attention to both of these documents on the PSAA website.

Value for Money (VFM) arrangements in place at the Council for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the OSC of your
responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in
place for the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted
for. We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities.

Significant risks

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Council’s business and is risk
based.

Those risks requiring special audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have been identified as:

Page 29

•

Management override of control

•

Valuation of the pension fund net liability

•

Valuation of land and buildings.

We will communicate significant findings on these three areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report in July.

Materiality

We have determined planning materiality to be £400,000 (PY: £375,000) for the Council, which equates to approximately 1.8% (PY: 1.8%) of gross expenditure on your
cost of services in the prior year. We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with
governance. The clearly trivial reporting threshold has been set at £20k (PY: £19k).

Value for Money
arrangements

Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identified the following VFM significant risk:
•

Embedding Risk management and financial monitoring arrangements – In 2018-19, our work identified that risk management, governance and financial
monitoring arrangements were not sufficiently embedded at the Council and as a result, we issued an ‘except for’ qualified VFM conclusion in relation to the
‘informed decision making’ VFM criteria. Whilst progress had been made to the Council’s arrangements in these areas during 2018-19, following the recognition of
the issues by the new Senior Management Team, the revised arrangements had not been in place for the duration of 2018-19 and were therefore not embedded

•

Through our continuing discussions with senior management this year, cumulative audit knowledge from our 2018-19 work and our attendance at OSC meetings to
date, we are aware of progress made in these areas. This includes, risk management reports and discussions at OSC, quarterly finance reports detailing
performance against budget and reduced level of variances comparing actual financial outturn against the approved budget

•

As part of our VFM work, we will continue to consider the arrangements around risk management and governance and the timeliness of financial performance
reporting to relevant Committees as the Council continues to enhance its arrangements in these areas.

Audit logistics

Our interim visit will take place in March and our final accounts audit visit will take place in June and July. Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and our Audit
Findings Report. Our fee for the audit will be £44,706 (PY: £43,706), subject to the Council meeting our requirements set out on page 12. The increase in fees reflects
the additional work which will be required during 2019-20. Further details are set out on pages 13 and 14.

Independence

We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to
express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

3

2. Key matters impacting our audit
Factors
The wider economy and political uncertainty
Local Government funding continues to be stretched with increasing
cost pressures and demand for services from residents.

The Council achieved it’s £6.1m 2018-19 budget with an overall
underspend of £1.2m (this was the second year of a significant
underspend against budget and reporting of the budgetary
performance was limited in the early part of the prior year, which
was one of the reasons which resulted in our qualified VFM
conclusion in 2018-19).

Page 30

The Council set a balance budget for 2019-20 which included £528k
savings. The Council’s latest revenue position .up to 30 September
2019 indicates a year to date surplus of £364k and forecast
underspend or surplus against budget of 8k by the year-end. The
Council is also projecting to deliver its planned savings efficiencies
of £528k in full. The development of more regular reporting of the
Council’s financial performance and reduced variances against
budget is a positive outcome, enhancing the Council’s governance
arrangements.

Financial reporting and audit – raising the bar

Other issues

The Financial Reporting Authority(FRC) has set out
its expectation of improved financial reporting from
organisations and the need for auditors to
demonstrate increased scepticism and challenge, and
to undertake more robust testing as detailed at
Appendix A.

Embedding risk management and financial monitoring
arrangements

Our work in 2018-19 highlighted areas where local
government financial reporting, in particular, property,
plant and equipment and pensions, needs to be
enhanced, with a corresponding increase in audit
procedures. We have also identified an increase in
the complexity of local government financial
transactions which require greater audit scrutiny.

In 2018-19, our work identified that risk management,
financial monitoring and governance arrangements were
not sufficiently embedded within the Council’s
arrangements. As a result, we issued an ‘except for’
qualified VFM conclusion in relation to the ‘informed
decision making’ VFM criteria.
Whilst positive progress had been made to the Council’s
arrangements in these areas during 2018-19, following the
recognition of the issues by the new Senior Management
Team, the revised arrangements had not been in place for
the duration of 2018-19 and were therefore not embedded.
We are aware of the further progress made by the Council
in these areas in 2019-20 and will be using our knowledge
of the Council’s developments to inform our 2019-20 VFM
conclusion.
Preparing for IFRS 16 Implementation

At a national level, the government is continuing its negotiation with
the EU over Brexit. The Council will need to ensure that it is
prepared for all outcomes, including in terms of any impact on
contracts, on service delivery and on its support for local people and
businesses.

The Council will need to undertake initial preparatory work
on its leases in 2019-20 in order to prepare for the full
introduction of IFRS 16 from 2020-21.
Our response

•

We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting
your financial resources as part of our overall work in reaching
our Value for Money conclusion

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the
expectations of the FRC with regard to audit quality
and local government financial reporting.

•

We will continue to meet with senior management and consider
the Council’s financial position and delivery of the savings
programme.

Our proposed work and fees, as set out in this Audit
Plan, has been agreed with the Service Director –
Finance and is subject to PSAA agreement.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

•

As part of our VFM work, we will consider the
arrangements, governance structures and internal
monitoring and reporting processes in place around
risk management at the Council

•

We will continue to meet with senior management to
discuss the progress the Council is making around risk
management and governance arrangements

•

We will assess the adequacy of your disclosures about
the financial impact of implementing IFRS 16 – Leases
in your 2019-20 financial statements.
4

3. Significant risks identified
Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk,
the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.
Risk

Reason for risk identification

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent
transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may As we do not consider this to be a significant risk for the
be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.
Council, we will not be undertaking any specific work in this
area other than our normal audit procedures, including
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no
validating total revenues to Council tax, non domestic rates
risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.
and central government grants income.
Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the
revenue streams at the Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud
arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

Page 31
Management over-ride of controls

•

there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

•

opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

•

the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including at
Ryedale District Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as
unacceptable.

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of
management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. The Council
faces external scrutiny of its spending and this could potentially place
management under undue pressure in terms of how they report
performance.
We therefore identified management override of control, in particular
journals, management estimates and transactions outside the course of
business as a significant risk, which was one of the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

We will:
•

evaluate the design effectiveness of management
controls over journals

•

analyse the journals listing and determine the criteria for
selecting high risk unusual journals

•

test unusual journals recorded during the year and after
the draft accounts stage for appropriateness and
corroboration

•

gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and
critical judgements applied and made by management
and consider their reasonableness with regard to
corroborative evidence

•

evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting
policies, estimates or significant unusual transactions.

5

Significant risks identified
Risk

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of land and buildings

The Council revalues its land and buildings on a rolling five-yearly basis.
This valuation represents a significant estimate by management in the
financial statements due to the size of the numbers involved (£14.9 million)
and the sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We will:

Additionally, management will need to ensure the carrying value in the
Council’s financial statements is not materially different from the current
value or the fair value (for surplus assets) at the financial statements date,
where a rolling programme is used.

Page 32

We therefore identified valuation of land and buildings, particularly
revaluations and impairments, as a significant risk, which was one of the
most significant assessed risks of material misstatement, and a key audit
matter.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

•

update our understanding of the processes and controls put
in place by management to ensure that the Council’s
valuation of land and buildings are not materially misstated
and evaluate the design of the associated controls

•

evaluate management's processes and assumptions for the
calculation of the estimate, the instructions issued to
valuation experts and the scope of their work

•

evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
valuation expert

•

discuss with the valuer the basis on which the valuation was
carried out

•

challenge the information and assumptions used by the
valuer to assess completeness and consistency with our
understanding

•

test revaluations made during the year to see if they had
been input correctly into the Council’s asset register

•

evaluate the assumptions made by management for those
assets not revalued during the year and how management
has satisfied themselves that these are not materially
different to current value at year end.

6

Significant risks identified
Risk

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of the pension fund net
liability

The Council’s pension fund net liability, as reflected in the balance sheet as
the retirement benefit obligations, represents a significant estimate in the
financial statements.

We will:

The Council’s pension fund net liability is considered a significant estimate
due to the size of the numbers involved (PY: £15.7m in the balance sheet)
and the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key assumptions.

update our understanding of the processes and controls put
in place by management to ensure that the Council’s
pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and
evaluate the design of the associated controls

•

We therefore identified valuation of the Council’s pension fund net liability
as a significant risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement

evaluate the instructions issued by management to their
management expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the
scope of the actuary’s work

•

assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
actuary who carried out the Council’s pension fund
valuation

•

assess the accuracy and completeness of the information
provided by the Council to the actuary to estimate the
liability

•

test the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability
and disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements
with the actuarial reports from respective actuaries

•

undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the
actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report of the
consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any
additional procedures suggested within the report

•

obtain assurances from the auditor of the North Yorkshire
Pension Fund as to the controls surrounding the validity
and accuracy of membership data; contributions data and
benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund and
the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial
statements.

Page 33

•

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings (ISA260) Report in July 2020.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

7

4. Other risks identified
Risk

Reason for risk identification

Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS)
16 Leases – (issued but
not adopted)

The public sector will implement this standard from 1 April 2020. It will
replace IAS 17 Leases, and the three interpretations that supported its
application (IFRIC 4, Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-15, Operating Leases – Incentives, and SIC-27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease).

We will:

•

Evaluate the processes the Council has adopted to assess the impact of
IFRS16 on its 2020-21 financial statements and whether the estimated
impact on assets, liabilities and reserves has been disclosed in the
2019-20 financial statements.

Under the new standard the current distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed for lessees and, subject to certain exceptions,
lessees will recognise all leases on their balance sheet as a right of use
asset and a liability to make the lease payments.

•

Assess the completeness of the disclosures made by the Council in its
2019-20 financial statements with reference to The Code and
CIPFA/LASAAC ‘Local Authority Leasing Briefings’.

Page 34

The Code adapts IFRS 16 and requires that the subsequent measurement
of the right of use asset where the underlying asset is an item of property,
plant and equipment is measured in accordance with section 4.1 of the
Code.
However, in accordance with IAS 8 and paragraph 3.3.4.3 of the Code
disclosures of the expected impact of IFRS 16 should be included in the
Council’s 2019-20 financial statements. The Council has a significant
amount of leases that will be within the scope of IFRS 16. We will consider
the completeness of this disclosure note around impact on IFRS 16 as an
other risk for 2019-20 financial statements audit.

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report in July 2020.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

8

5. Other matters
Other work

Other material balances and transactions

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other
audit responsibilities, as follows:

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each
material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material
balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will
not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement and any other
information published alongside your financial statements to check that they are
consistent with the financial statements on which we give an opinion and consistent
with our knowledge of the Council

•

We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual
Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued by CIPFA

•

We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government
Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions

•

We consider our other duties under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the
Act) and the Code, as and when required, including:

•

Page 35

•

•

Giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2019-20
financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in
relation to the 2019-20 financial statements

•

Issue of a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the
Council under section 24 of the Act, copied to the Secretary of State

•

Application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary
to law under Section 28 or for a judicial review under Section 31 of the Act
or

•

Issuing an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Act.

Going concern
As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the
appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is
a material uncertainty about the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA
(UK) 570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption
and material uncertainties, and evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements.

We certify completion of our audit.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

9

6. Materiality
The concept of materiality
The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and
the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure
requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in
the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Gross expenditure of cost of services
£21.4m

Materiality
£400,000
Council financial
statements materiality

Materiality for planning purposes
We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross
expenditure of the cost of services of the Council for the previous financial year (2018-19).
In the prior year a similar benchmark was used. Materiality at the planning stage of our audit
is £400,000 (PY: £375,00), which nearly equates to approximately 1.8% (PY: 1.8%) of your
2018-19 gross expenditure of cost of services.

(PY: £375,000)

Page 36

We design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts balances or disclosures at a
lower level of precision. The senior officer remuneration disclosure in the financial
statements has been identified as an area requiring lower level of materiality of £5,000, due
to the sensitive nature of the disclosure.

We will reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we
become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a different
determination of planning materiality.
Matters we will report to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Audit)
Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to our
opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Committee
any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are identified by
our audit work. Under ISA (UK) 260 ‘Communication with those charged with governance’,
we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are
‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA (UK) 260 defines ‘clearly trivial’ as
matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and
whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria. In the context of the Council, we
propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is
less than £20,000 (PY: £19,000).
If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the
audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the Committee
to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

£20,000
Misstatements reported
to the Audit Committee
Prior year gross operating costs

(PY: £19,000)

Materiality
10

7. Value for Money arrangements
Background to our VFM approach
The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work in November 2017. The
guidance states that for Local Government bodies, auditors are required to give a
conclusion on whether the Council has proper arrangements in place to secure value for
money.
The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:
“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”
This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Significant VFM risks
Those risks requiring audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that
proper arrangements are not in place at the Council to deliver value for money.
Embedding risk management and financial monitoring arrangements to
support informed decision making
In 2018-19, our work identified that risk management and governance
arrangements were not sufficiently embedded and as a result, we issued an
‘except for’ qualified VFM conclusion in relation to ‘informed decision making’
VFM criteria.
Whilst positive progress had been made to the Council’s arrangements in
these areas during 2018-19, following the recognition of the issues by the
new Senior Management Team, the revised arrangements had not been in
place for the duration of 2018-19 and were therefore not embedded.

Page 37

We noted in our 2018-19 Annual Audit Letter that embedding the enhanced
arrangements for risk management, financial monitoring and governance
continued to be key priorities for the Council in order to support informed
decision making in 2019-20 and beyond.
As part of our VFM work, we will:

Informed
decision
making

Value for
Money
arrangements
criteria
Working
with partners
& other third
parties

Sustainable
resource
deployment

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

•

continue to consider the arrangements, governance structures and
internal monitoring processes in place at the Council

•

continue to meet with senior management and Internal Audit to discuss
the progress the Council is making around risk management and financial
monitoring, for example, reviewing the reporting of the Council’s
performance against its budget and any level of variances

•

consider how the Council is addressing our 2018-19 audit
recommendations on embedding risk management and monitoring
arrangements to support informed decision making

•

observe the discussion and level of challenge on governance and risk
management issues which take place at the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

•

consider timely financial reporting around Council’s financial performance
to relevant committees.

11

8. Audit logistics & team
Audit
Committee
22 January 2020

Audit
Committee
23 April 2020
Interim audit
March 2020

Planning and
risk assessment

Page 38

Gareth Mills
Engagement Lead
M 07825 115921
E Gareth.Mills@uk.gt.com

Thilina De Zoysa
Engagement Manager
M 07500 784942

Audit
Plan

Engagement – In charge
M 07881 249907

Target date
for sign off
31 July 2020

Target date for
AAL
31 August 2020

Audit
Findings
Report

Issue
Audit
opinion

Annual
Audit
Letter
(AAL)

Year end audit
June & July 2020
Interim
Progress
Report

Gareth leads our relationship with you and takes
overall responsibility for the delivery of a high
quality audit, ensuring the highest professional
standards are maintained and a commitment to
add value to the Council.

Client responsibilities

Thilina plans, manages and leads the delivery of
the audit. He is the first point of contact for your
finance team for discussing any emerging issues.

Our requirements

E Thilina.De.Zoysa@uk.gt.com

Jack Walsh

Audit
Committee
29 July 2020

Jack’s role is to assist in planning, managing and
delivering the audit fieldwork, ensuring the audit is
delivered effectively, efficiently and supervises
and co-ordinates the on site audit team.

E Jack.H.Walsh@uk.gt.com

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

Where clients do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that this does not
impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, thereby
disadvantaging other clients. Where the elapsed time to complete an audit exceeds that
agreed due to a client not meeting its obligations we will not be able to maintain a team on
site. Similarly, where additional resources are needed to complete the audit due to a client
not meeting their obligations we are not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit to the
agreed timescales. In addition, delayed audits will incur additional audit fees.
To minimise the risk of a delayed audit, you need to ensure that you:
•

produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed with
us, including all notes, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement

•

ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in
accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with
you

•

ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are
reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples

•

ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise
agreed) the planned period of the audit

•

respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

12

9. Audit fees
.

Planned audit fees 2019-20
Across all sectors and firms, the FRC has set out its expectation of improved financial reporting from organisations and the need for auditors to demonstrate increased
scepticism and challenge and to undertake additional and more robust testing. Within the public sector, where the FRC has recently assumed responsibility for the inspection
of local government audit, the regulator requires that all audits achieve a 2A (few improvements needed) rating.
Our work across the sector in 2018-19 has highlighted areas where local government financial reporting, in particular, property, plant and equipment and pensions, needs to
be improved. We have also identified an increase in the complexity of local government financial transactions. Combined with the FRC requirement that 100% of audits
achieve a 2A rating this means that additional audit work is required. We have set out below the expected impact on our audit fee. The table overleaf provides more details
about the areas where we will be undertaking further testing.
As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of the FRC with regard to audit quality and local government financial reporting. Our proposed work and
fee for 2019-20 at the planning stage, as set out below and with further analysis overleaf, has been agreed with the Chief Finance Officer (S151) and is subject to PSAA
agreement.

Page 39

Audit scale fee set by PSAA
Audit fee variations – additional work required (see page 14)
Total audit fees (excluding VAT)

Actual Fee 2017-18
(KPMG)

Actual Fee 2018-19
(Grant Thornton)

Proposed Fee 2019-20
(Grant Thornton)

£41,826

£32,206

£32,206

N/A

£11,500

£12,500

£41,826

£43,706

£44,706

Assumptions:
In setting the above fees, we have assumed that the Council will:
- prepare a good quality set of accounts, supported by comprehensive and well presented/referenced working papers which are ready at the start of the audit
- provide appropriate analysis, support and evidence to support all critical judgements and significant estimates made during the course of preparing the financial statements
- provide early notice of proposed complex or unusual transactions which could have a material impact on the financial statements.

Relevant professional standards:
In preparing our fee estimate, we have had regard to all relevant professional standards, including paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of the FRC’s Ethical Standard which stipulate that the
Engagement Lead (Key Audit Partner) must set a fee sufficient to enable the resourcing of the audit with staff of appropriate skills, time and abilities to deliver an audit to the
required professional standard.
© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

13

Audit fee variations – Further analysis
Planned audit fees
The table below shows the planned variations to the original scale fee for 2019-20 based on our best estimate at the audit planning stage. Further issues identified during the
course of the audit may incur additional fees. In agreement with PSAA (where applicable) we will be seeking approval to secure these additional fees for the remainder of the
contract via a formal rebasing of your scale fee to reflect the increased level of audit work required to enable us to discharge our responsibilities. Should any further issues
arise during the course of the audit that necessitate further audit work additional fees will be incurred, subject to PSAA approval.
Audit area:
PSAA scale fee

2019-20 fee £
32,206

Rationale for fee variation:
PSAA scale fee
To meet the higher threshold set by the FRC, we will be required to undertake additional work and challenge in the following areas,
including:
• use of specialists

Page 40

Increased challenge and
depth of work

• information provided by the entity (IPE)
2,500

• journals & management review of controls
• accounting estimates and judgements
• financial resilience and going concern
• related parties and similar areas

Pensions – valuation of net
pension liabilities under
International Auditing
Standard (IAS) 19

1,750

A significant audit risk area, we have increased the granularity, depth and scope of coverage, with increased levels of sampling,
additional levels of challenge and explanation sought, and heightened levels of documentation and reporting.

PPE Valuation – work of
experts and other PPE related
additional work

1,750

A significant audit risk area, we have increased the granularity, depth and scope of coverage, with increased levels of sampling,
additional levels of challenge and explanation sought, and heightened levels of documentation and reporting.

Follow up of additional VFM
significant risk

5,000

Follow up of additional VFM risk from 2018-19 – see VFM significant risk on page 11.

New standards /
developments

1,500

Additional work required in 2019/20 in relation to the other risk identified at page 9 in relation to introduction of IFRS 16.

Revised scale fee

44,706

(to be approved by PSAA)

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

14

10. Independence and non audit services
Auditor independence
Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm
or covered persons relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us. We will also discuss with you if we make
additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters.
We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial
statements.
We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit
Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 and PSAA’s Terms of Appointment which set out supplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local
public bodies.
Audit and Non-audit services
For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The following non-audit services were identified:

Page 41

Service

£

Threats

Safeguards

11,484

Self-Interest
(because this is a
recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for this
work is £11,484 (on the basis that we complete the HB workbooks) in comparison to the total fee for the audit of
£44,706 (after fee variations )and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall.

3,500

Self-Interest
(because this is a
recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee for this
work is £3,500 (on the basis that we complete the HB workbooks) in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £44,706
(after fee variations )and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall.

Audit related:
Housing Benefit
Certification

Non-Audit related:
Chief Finance Officer
Insights and Place
Analytics subscription

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are
consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services
by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings (ISA260) report at the conclusion of the audit.
None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.
The firm is committed to improving our audit quality – please see our transparency report - https://www.grantthornton.ie/about/transparency-report/

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

15

Appendix

Page 42

A.

Audit Quality – national context

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

Appendix A: Audit Quality – national context
What has the FRC said about Audit Quality?

What are we doing to address FRC findings?

The Financial Reporting Authority(FRC) publishes an annual Quality Inspection of our firm,
alongside our competitors. The Annual Quality Review (AQR) monitors the quality of UK
Public Interest Entity audits to promote continuous improvement in audit quality.

In response to the FRC’s findings, the firm is responding vigorously and with purpose. As
part of our Audit Investment Programme (AIP), we are establishing a new Quality Board,
commissioning an independent review of our audit function, and strengthening our senior
leadership at the highest levels of the firm, for example through the appointment of Fiona
Baldwin as Head of Audit. We are confident these investments will make a real difference.

All of the major audit firms are subject to an annual review process in which the FRC
inspects a small sample of audits performed from each of the firms to see if they fully
conform to required standards.

•

improve the extent and rigour of challenge of management in areas of judgement

We have also undertaken a root cause analysis and put in place processes to address the
issues raised by the FRC. We have already implemented new training material that will
reinforce the need for our engagement teams to challenge management and demonstrate
how they have applied professional scepticism as part of the audit. Further guidance on
auditing areas such as revenue has also been disseminated to all audit teams and we will
continue to evolve our training and review processes on an ongoing basis.

•

improve the consistency of audit teams’ application of professional scepticism

What will be different in this audit?

•

strengthen the effectiveness of the audit of revenue

•

improve the audit of going concern

•

improve the audit of the completeness and evaluation of prior year adjustments.

We will continue working collaboratively with you to deliver the audit to the agreed
timetable whilst improving our audit quality. In achieving this you may see, for example, an
increased expectation for management to develop properly articulated papers for any new
accounting standard, or unusual or complex transactions. In addition, you should expect
engagement teams to exercise even greater challenge management in areas that are
complex, significant or highly judgmental which may be the case for accounting estimates,
going concern, related parties and similar areas. As a result you may find the audit process
even more challenging than previous audits. These changes will give the Corporate
Governance and Audit Committee – which has overall responsibility for governance - and
senior management greater confidence that we have delivered a high quality audit and that
the financial statements are not materially misstated. Even greater challenge of
management will also enable us to provide greater insights into the quality of your finance
function and internal control environment and provide those charged with governance
confidence that a material misstatement due to fraud will have been detected.

The most recent report, published in July 2019, shows that the results of commercial audits
taken across all the firms have worsened this year. The FRC has identified the need for
auditors to:

Page 43

The FRC has also set all firms the target of achieving a grading of ‘2A’ (limited
improvements required) or better on all audits.
Other sector wide reviews
Alongside the FRC, other key stakeholders including the Department for Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) have expressed concern about the quality of audit work and
the need for improvement. A number of key reviews into the profession have been
undertaken or are in progress. These include the review by Sir John Kingman of the
Financial Reporting Authority(Dec 2018), the review by the Competition and Markets
Authority of competition within the audit market, the ongoing review by Sir Donald Brydon
of external audit, and specifically for public services, the Review by Sir Tony Redmond of
local authority financial reporting and external audit. As a firm, we are contributing to all
these reviews and keen to be at the forefront of developments and improvements in public
audit.

We will still plan for a smooth audit and ensure this is completed to the timetable agreed.
However, there may be instances where we may require additional time for both the audit
work to be completed to the standard required and to ensure management have
appropriate time to consider any matters raised. This may require us to agree with you a
delay in signing the announcement and financial statements. To minimise this risk, we will
keep you informed of progress and risks to the timetable as the audit progresses.
We are absolutely committed to delivering audit of the highest quality and we should be
happy to provide further detail about our improvement plans should you require it.

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

17

Page 44
© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.
‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member
firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk
© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP | External Audit Plan for Ryedale District Council 2019-20

Agenda Item 10

PART A:

MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

23 JANUARY 2020

REPORT OF THE:

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES MANAGER
SIMON COPLEY

TITLE OF REPORT:

UPDATE ON USE OF REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY
POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA)

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report provides details of the use of covert surveillance under the Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act by Ryedale District Council.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1

That Members note that no application for covert surveillance has been made to the
Council’s approved “Authorising Officers” and as a consequence no application to the
Magistrates Court requesting approval of any such grant has been made.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To ensure oversight by Members of the Council’s compliance with the legislation.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS
There are no significant risk management/assessment implications arising from this
proposed decision.

REPORT
5.0

BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION

5.1

The role of local government is bound by a wide breadth of statutory duties and powers.
In an attempt to quantify the full extent of legal duties placed on local government, the
Department of Communities and Local Government undertook a review of local

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 45

23 JANUARY 2020

government statutory duties in 2011 and identified 1,294 statutory duties that central
government places on local authorities. Local authorities have a wide range of
prosecution powers in discharging its regulatory roles.
5.2

Currently (in England and Wales) local authorities can bring their own prosecutions
based on their own investigations by their own departments – including housing benefit,
environmental health, fly tipping, dangerous dogs, food safety, listed building control,
planning control and health and safety.

5.3

When taking enforcement action, the Council’s enforcing officers may on occasion
consider it necessary to undertake covert surveillance work in order to undertake the
Council’s statutory duties or “core work”. For example, covert surveillance may be
necessary to observe individuals who may be suspected of benefit fraud.

5.4

The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) was enacted to protect the
human rights of individuals who are the subject of covert investigatory techniques, and
others who might be affected by collateral intrusion. Contrary to widespread
misreporting in the media, it is not anti-terrorism legislation and it did not give local
authorities access to covert investigatory techniques for the first time. RIPA merely
provides a regulatory framework for the exercise of existing powers which is
transparent, addresses human rights issues and has clearly defined authorisation
processes.

5.5

RIPA controls the use of covert surveillance operations by the Council when
undertaking its various enforcement functions.

5.6

In essence, RIPA imposes a requirement that an investigating officer cannot use covert
surveillance as a method of gathering evidence unless they have first obtained a proper
authorisation by an officer of senior rank. RIPA requires that formal “Authorisation” from
a senior officer must be obtained before carrying out covert surveillance, monitoring
and other evidence-gathering activities.

5.7

The investigating officer must make a written application describing the proposed
surveillance activity and giving details of the reasons for it, the person or persons who
will be the subject of the surveillance, and what evidence the surveillance is intended
to obtain. The authorising officer must be satisfied that the proposed surveillance is
both necessary and proportionate in the circumstances and that there is no other
reasonable method of achieving the desired outcome.

5.8

RIPA requires the Council to have in place procedures to ensure that when required,
surveillance is necessary and is properly authorised. Surveillance is usually a last
resort that an investigator will use to prove or disprove an allegation. RIPA sets out a
statutory mechanism for authorising covert surveillance and the use of covert human
intelligence sources.

5.9

Any such Authorisation granted must be supported by an Order approving the grant
or renewal of such Authorisation from a JP (either a District Judge or lay magistrate)
before it can take effect.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 46

23 JANUARY 2020

6.0

POLICY CONTEXT

6.1

Surveillance of illegal activity can take place as part of a number of Council regulatory
functions which contribute to improving the district as a place to live.

6.2

Whilst the Council is not usually a user of covert surveillance, such methods are used
where it is considered necessary and proportionate to do so in order to help achieve
the Council’s priorities, particularly in relation to the protection of the public and the
environment.

7.0

CONSULTATION

7.1

Senior Council officers have contributed to the preparation of the report.

8.0

REPORT DETAILS

8.1

Systems have been in place since RIPA came into force and include guidance notes
on the Council's Intranet, periodic training for officers, and advice and oversight from
Legal Services. One of the requirements of the regime is that a central record of
authorisations be kept. This is kept and maintained securely by Legal Services.

8.2

The Home Office has issued detailed Codes of Practice on compliance with RIPA‟s
provisions together with standard authorisation forms. RIPA requires that only a
“Director, Head of Service or Service Manager or equivalent are lawfully entitled to
authorise covert techniques. Currently this is limited to the Chief Executive, Council
Solicitor, Head of Planning and Regulatory Services and the Chief Finance Officer
(s151). Further key guidance notes, distilled from the Home Office codes of practice,
are available to the Authorising Officers.

8.3

It is emphasised that the use of covert investigatory techniques should, in all cases, be
the last resort and the only ground upon which an authorisation may be granted is for
the purposes of preventing or detecting a criminal offence, which must be punishable
by a maximum term of at least 6 months’ imprisonment (with an exception relating to
sale of alcohol and tobacco to children). In addition, as previously mentioned, local
authority RIPA authorisations must be approved by the Magistrates' Court.

8.4

Although RIPA covers a number of activities undertaken by investigatory bodies (e.g.,
phone tapping by the Security Services and Police) its principle use in respect of Local
Authorities relates to:• covert surveillance, and
• covert human intelligence sources.

8.5

Covert surveillance covers the monitoring, observing or listening to persons, their
movements, conversations or other activities and communications in a way that is
calculated to ensure that persons who are subject to surveillance are unaware. It may
be conducted with or without the assistance of a surveillance device and includes the
recording of any information obtained. RIPA is most relevant to the Council’s activities
in effecting enforcement procedures such as the investigation and prosecution of
offences. This would not include the initial investigation of contraventions such as
planning enforcement or noise investigations. The Council’s use of the powers has

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 47

23 JANUARY 2020

been very limited in recent years. For example, the Council has not used authorisations
under the Act in the last eight years.
8.6

Covert human intelligence sources relate to the use of a third party to gather
information. For example, this could be an informer or someone used to undertake test
purchases. This is not an activity that the Council engages in at all. The Council also
needs the approval of a magistrate to carry out this activity.

8.7

The only area in which the Council very occasionally involves itself where RIPA might
be relevant is covert surveillance. It is necessary for the Council therefore to follow the
legislation and the requirements of Government Codes of Practice. Most of the
requirements of the Code are dealt with at an Officer level. However, Members are
expected to approve a Policy on RIPA and to have some involvement in the monitoring
of how the Council implements RIPA requirements.

9.0

IMPLICATIONS

9.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None arising from the report.
b)

Legal
Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights provides: “Everyone has
the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his
correspondence.”
There can be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right
except such as is in accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic
society for the purpose of the prevention of disorder or crime.
The right to non interference with an Article 8 right is not absolute. It is a qualified
right. This means that in certain circumstances the Council may interfere with the
right if the interference is:
•
•
•

c)

in accordance with the law
necessary, and
proportionate

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None arising from the report.

Simon Copley
Democratic Services Manager
Telephone No: 01653 600666 ext. 43277
E-Mail Address: simon.copley@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 48

23 JANUARY 2020

Background Papers:
1. Home Office Guidance - Covert Surveillance and Property Interference (August 2018)
2. Home Office Guidance – Covert Human Intelligent Sources (August 2018)
3. Home Office Guidance - Protection of Freedoms Act 2012- changes to the provisions
under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 2000 (October 2012 )
4. Office of Surveillance Commissioners - Procedures and Guidance (July 2016)
Background Papers are available for inspection at: www.ryedale.gov.uk
or Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 49

23 JANUARY 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ITEM, DRAFT FOR CONSIDERATION PRIOR TO
FULL COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

COUNCIL

DATE:

20 FEBRUARY 2020

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND
ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2020/21

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To consider the Treasury Management, Annual Investment and Capital Strategies,
the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Prudential Indicators for 2019/20, as
required by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government and CIPFA
(as updated 2017)..

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

That Council is recommended to approve:
(i)
Members receive this report;
(ii)

The Operational Borrowing Limit for 2020/21 is set at £6m;

(iii)

The Authorised Borrowing Limit for 2020/21 is set at £11.5m;

(iv)

Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect movement
within the agreed authorised boundary limits for long-term borrowing for
2020/21 onwards.

(v)

Councillors delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer to effect movement
within the agreed operational boundary limits for long-term borrowing for
2020/21 onwards.

(vi)

The treasury management strategy statement 2020/21 be approved.

(vii)

The minimum revenue provision policy statement for 2020/21 be approved.

(viii)

The treasury management investment strategy for 2020/21 be approved.

COUNCIL

Page 51

20 FEBRUARY 2020

(ix)

The prudential indicators for 2020/21 which reflect the capital expenditure
plans which are affordable, prudent and sustainable be approved.

(x)

The Capital Strategy for 2020/21 be approved

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

To ensure the Council’s Treaury Management Strategy and association policies are
prudent and affordable.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are significant risks when investing public funds especially with unknown
institutions. However, by the adoption of the CIPFA Code and a prudent investment
policy, these are minimised. The employment of Treasury Advisors also helps reduce
the risk.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in
Local Authorities and this report complies with the requirements under this code and
the relevant requirements of the Local Government Act 2003.

5.2

The Council use the services of Link Asset Services to provide treasury management
information and advice.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2020/21

6.1.1 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that
cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury
management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with
cash being available when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk
counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite,
providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return.
6.1.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of
the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council
can meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer term cash may
involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses.
On occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or
cost objectives.
6.1.3 The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is critical,
as the balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to
meet spending commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for
larger capital projects. The treasury operations will see a balance of the interest
costs of debt and the investment income arising from cash deposits affecting the
COUNCIL

Page 52

20 FEBRUARY 2020

available budget. Since cash balances generally result from reserves and balances,
it is paramount to ensure adequate security of the sums invested, as a loss of
principal will in effect result in a loss to the General Fund Balance.

6.1.4 CIPFA defines treasury management as:
”The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking,
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent
with those risks.”
Reporting Requirements
6.1.5 Revised reporting is required from the 2019/20 reporting cycle due to revisions of the
MHCLG Investment Guidance, the MHCLG Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
Guidance, the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code.
The primary reporting changes include the introduction of a capital strategy, to
provide a longer-term focus to the capital plans, and greater reporting requirements
surrounding any commercial activity undertaken under the Localism Act 2011.
6.1.6

Capital Strategy
The CIPFA revised 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes requires all
local authorities to prepare a capital strategy report, which will provide the following:
 a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing
and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services
 an overview of how the associated risk is managed
 the implications for future financial sustainability
The aim of this capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members on the full
council fully understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting capital
strategy requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite.

6.1.7

Treasury Management Reporting
The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports
each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals. These
reports are required to be adequately scrutinised by committee before being
recommended to the Council. This role is undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.
Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy (this report) – The first
and most important report covers:
 The capital plans (including prudential indicators);
 A Minimum Revenue Provision Policy (how residual capital expenditure is charged
to revenue over time);
 The Treasury Management Strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to
be organised) including treasury indicators; and
 An investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be managed).

COUNCIL

Page 53

20 FEBRUARY 2020

A Mid Year Treasury Management Report. This will update members with the
progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary, and
whether the treasury strategy or whether any policies require revision.
An Annual Treasury Report. This provides details of a selection of actual prudential
treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to the estimates within
the strategy.
Treasury Management Strategy for 2020/21
6.1.8 The strategy for 2020/21 covers two main areas
Capital Issues
 The capital plans and prudential indicators
 The MRP strategy
Treasury Management Issues
 The current treasury position;
 Treasury indicators which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council;
 Prospects for interest rates;
 The borrowing strategy;
 Policy on borrowing in advance of need;
 The investment strategy; and
 Creditworthiness policy.
These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the
CIPFA Prudential Code, the CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management
Code and the CLG Investment Guidance.
6.1.9 Training
The CIPFA Code requires the Chief Finance Officer to ensure that members with
responsibility for treasury management, particularly those with responsibility for
scrutiny, receive adequate training in treasury management. Training has been
provided to members by Link Asset Services and further training will be arranged as
required.
6.1.10 Treasury Management Consultants
The Council uses Link Asset Services, Treasury Solutions as it external treasury
management advisors.
The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not
placed upon the services of our external service providers. All decisions will be
undertaken with regards to all available information, including, but not solely, our
treasury advisers.
It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources.
The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which
their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to
regular review.

COUNCIL

Page 54

20 FEBRUARY 2020

6.1.11 Treasury Management Function & Sweeping Arrangements
Included within the service level agreement which is currently being finalised with
North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) for the provision on s151 Officer and
Finance services, there is provision for treasury management support.
Reporting and monitoring processes are already in place, along with day to day
support for treasury activities. In the 2019/20 mid-year update, it was reported that
discussions were underway between the Authorities’ respective banks exploring the
technical feasibility for Ryedale District Council to join NYCC’s investment pool, and
that prior to implementing such arrangements Ryedale District Council would be
asked to formally adopt the Investment Strategy of NYCC.
Following on-going discussions, a solution for automated balances sweeping
between banks has not been identified at present, although opportunities will
continue to be investigated. It is therefore not proposed within the 2020/21
Investment strategy to adopt that of NYCC, but for Ryedale to continue with its own
strategy until further updates on sweeping can be brought forward for approval.
6.2

THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2020/21 – 2022/23
Introduction

6.2.1 The ‘Prudential Code’ provides Council’s with a regime of self-regulation for
borrowing money for capital purposes. A local authority can borrow as much as it
wishes as long as it can afford the repayments. The Code outlines four key objectives
relating to the capital investment plans and treasury management procedures of local
authorities. To demonstrate that these objectives are being fulfilled the Prudential
Code sets out the indicators that must be used, and the factors that must be taken
into account.
6.2.2 The Code prescribes how the issue of affordability is measured using a set of
prudential indicators. The four key objectives of the Code are to ensure that capital
investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and to
ensure that treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good
professional practice. The indicators are mandatory but the figures used in the
calculations are a matter for each local authority.
6.2.3 The prudential indicators required by the Code are designed to support and record
local decision-making. They are not designed to be comparative performance
indicators and the use of them in this way would be likely to be misleading and
counter-productive.
6.2.4 The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management
activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans are reflected in prudential
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital
expenditure plans.
Capital Expenditure.
6.2.5 This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both
those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle. These are
currently based draft estimates and final budget proposals will be updated prior to
Council approval.
COUNCIL

Page 55

20 FEBRUARY 2020

Table 1: Capital Expenditure

Capital Expenditure
General Fund
Commercial Activites /
Non Financial
Investments
Total

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

Actual

Estimate

Estimate

Estimate

Estimate

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

842

6,705

1,285

1,177

811

0

0

0

0

0

842

6,705

1,285

1,177

811

The above financing need excludes other long term liabilities, such as PFI and
leasing arrangements which already include borrowing instruments.
Table 2: Financing of Capital Expenditure
6.2.6

The table below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these
plans are being financed by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources
results in a funding need (borrowing):
2018/19
Capital Expenditure

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

Est.

Est.

Est.

Est.

Est.

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

General Fund

842

6,705

1,285

1,177

811

Total

842

6,705

1,285

1,177

811

-208

-5,768

-315

-315

-315

-27

-125

0

0

0

-607

-496

-496

-496

-496

Borrowing - Leases

0

-316

-474

-366

0

Net Financing Need

0

0

0

0

0

Financed By:
Revenue & Reserves
Capital Receipts
Grants

The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement)
6.2.7 The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement
(CFR). The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has
not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a
measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure above,
which has not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.
6.2.8

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is
a statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line
with each assets life. The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below:

COUNCIL

Page 56

20 FEBRUARY 2020

Table 3: Capital Financing Requirement

CFR General Fund
CFR GF Leases
CFR Commercial / Nonfinancial investments
Total CFR
Movement in CFR

2018/19
Est.
£000
1,624
240

2019/20
Est.
£000
1,589
323

2020/21
Est.
£000
1,553
609

2021/22
Est.
£000
1,518
780

2022/23
Est.
£000
1,483
590

0

0

0

0

0

1,864
-183

1,912
47

2,162
251

2,298
136

2,073
-225

0

0

0

0

0

-183

47

251

136

-225

-183

48

251

136

-225

Movement in CFR represented by:Net Financing need for the
year
Less MRP & Other
Financing movements
Movement in CFR

6.2.9 The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. finance leases) brought onto the
balance sheet. Whilst this increases the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing
requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council is
not required to separately borrow for these schemes. These are also shown in Table
3.
Affordability Prudential Indicators
6.2.10 The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential
indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the
affordability of the capital investment plans. These provide an indication of the
impact of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances. The Council
is asked to approve the following indicator:
6.2.11 The indicator of actual and estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue
stream identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. These
are shown in Table 4. The estimates of financing costs include current commitments
and the proposals in this report.
Table 4: Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

General Fund

6.3

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

Actual

Est.

Est.

Est.

Est.

%

%

%

%

%

2.06

1.54

1.08

1.08

0.97

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT 2020/21
Introduction

6.3.1 The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund
COUNCIL

Page 57

20 FEBRUARY 2020

capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum revenue
provision – MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary
payments if required (voluntary revenue provision – VRP).
MHCLG Regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve an
MRP Policy Statement in advance of each year. A variety of options are provided to
councils so long as there is a prudent provision. The Council is recommended to
approve the following MRP Statement.
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy
6.3.2 The Council’s MRP policy is based on the Governments Statutory Guidance and
following a review no further changes are considered necessary and the policy for
2020/21 is therefore as follows:
(a) For all Capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 which formed the
General Fund Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) that is capital expenditure
funded through borrowing will be charged at 4% of the outstanding balance each
year.
(b) From 1 April 2018 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance
leases) the MRP policy will be either:




Asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in
accordance with the regulations (this option must be applied for any
expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction) (option 3);
Depreciation method – MRP will follow standard depreciation accounting
procedures (option 4);

These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the
asset’s life
Total MRP for 2020/21 is estimated at £0.223m, (£0.035 internal borrowing, and
£0.188m for leases).
6.3.3 MRP Overpayments - A change introduced by the revised MHCLG MRP Guidance
was the allowance that any charges made over the statutory minimum revenue
provision (MRP), voluntary revenue provision or overpayments (VRP), can, if needed,
be reclaimed in later years if deemed necessary or prudent. In order for these sums
to be reclaimed for use in the budget, this policy must disclose the cumulative
overpayment made each year. At present there are no plans to make voluntary
revenue provisions (VRP).
6.4

BORROWING STRATEGY 2020/21

6.4.1 The capital expenditure plans provide details of the service activity of the Council.
The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is organised in
accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available
to meet the service activity. This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow
and, where capital plans require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities.
The strategy covers the relevant treasury / prudential indicators, the current and
projected debt positions and the annual investment strategy.
6.4.2 The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 December 2019, is shown in Table 1.
COUNCIL

Page 58

20 FEBRUARY 2020

Table 1: Current Treasury Portfolio at 31/12/19

Fixed rate funding

Variable rate funding

Other long term liabilities

PWLB
Market

Principal
£m
1.6
0.0

PWLB
Market

0.0
0.0

0.0

0

Leases

0.2

0.2

4.69

1.8

4.19

30.95

0.90

Total Debt
Total Investments

£m

Ave. Rate
%

1.6

3.49

6.4.3 Forward projections are summarised in Table 2. The table shows the actual external
borrowing (the treasury management operations), against the capital borrowing need
(the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.
Table 2: Forecasted Portfolio Position

External Borrowing
Borrowing at 1 April
Expected Change in Borrowing
Leases
Actual Borrowing at 31 March
CFR - the borrowing need
Under / (over) borrowing
Investments
Total Investments
Investment Change
Net Borrowing

2019/20
F'cast
£000

2020/21
F'cast
£000

2021/22
F'cast
£000

2022/23
F'cast
£000

1,553
-39
323
1,836
1,912
75

1,513
-39
609
2,083
2,162
80

1,474
-39
780
2,215
2,298
84

1,434
-39
590
1,985
2,073
88

20,201
-1,759
-18,365

18,911
-1,290
-16,829

18,136
-776
-15,921

18,321
186
-16,336

Treasury Limits for 2020/21 to 2022/23
6.4.5 Ryedale District Council has, at any point in time, a number of cash flows both
positive and negative, and manages its treasury position in terms of its borrowings
and investments in accordance with its approved treasury management strategy and
practices. In day-to-day cash management, no distinction can be made between
revenue and capital cash. External borrowing arises as a consequence of all the
financial transactions of the authority and not simply those arising from capital
spending
6.4.6 CIPFA’s Prudential code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities’ includes the
following key indicator of prudence;
“In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital
purpose, the local authority should ensure that net external borrowing does not,
COUNCIL

Page 59

20 FEBRUARY 2020

except in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the
preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for
the current and the next two financial years.”
6.4.7 The Chief Finance Officer reports that the authority had no difficulty meeting this
requirement in 2018/19, nor are any difficulties envisaged for the current (2019/20) or
future years (2021/22 – 2022/23). This view takes into account current commitments,
existing plans and the proposals in the budget.
6.4.8 The Council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the Authorised
Limit, which essentially requires it to ensure that total capital investment remains
within sustainable limits and, in particular, that the impact upon its future council tax
levels is ‘acceptable’. It reflects the level of external borrowing which, while not
desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.
6.4.9 Whilst termed an “Affordable Borrowing Limit”, it incorporates the capital plans to be
considered for inclusion in corporate financing by both external borrowing and other
forms of liability, such as credit arrangements.
6.4.10 The Authorised Limit for external borrowing is a key prudential indicator and
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing. It is a limit beyond which
external borrowing is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by the full
Council on a rolling basis, for the forthcoming financial year and two successive
financial years. This information is shown in table 3.
Table 3: Authorised Borrowing Limit
Authorised Limit

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

2019/20
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,000
11,000

2020/21
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,500
11,500

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,500
11,500

2022/23
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,500
11,500

6.4.11 The Operational Boundary is the limit beyond which external borrowing is not
normally expected to exceed and within which officers will manage the Council’s
external debt position. In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but
may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual borrowing. This information
is shown in table 4.
Table 4: Operational Borrowing Limit
Operational Boundary

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

2019/20
Estimate
£’000
5,000
500
5,500

2020/21
Estimate
£’000
5,000
1,000
6,000

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
5,000
1,000
6,000

2022/23
Estimate
£’000
5,000
1,000
6,000

6.4.12 In respect of its external debt, table 3 details the proposed authorised limits for the
Council’s total external debt gross of investments for the next three financial years
which councillors are recommended to approve. These limits separately identify
borrowing from other long-term liabilities such as finance leases. It is also
recommended that members continue to delegate authority to the Chief Finance
COUNCIL

Page 60

20 FEBRUARY 2020

Officer, within the total limit for any individual year, to effect movement between the
separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long term liabilities. Any such
changes made will be reported to Overview & Scrutiny Committee at its next meeting
following the change.
6.4.13 The Chief Finance Officer reports that these authorised limits are consistent with the
authority’s current commitments, existing plans and the proposals in the budget for
capital expenditure and financing, and with its approved treasury management policy
statement and practices. The Chief Finance Officer confirms that they are based on
the estimate of the most likely, prudent but not worst-case scenario, with sufficient
headroom over and above this to allow for operational management, for example
unusual cash movements. Risk analysis and risk management strategies have been
taken into account; as have plans for capital expenditure, estimates of the capital
financing requirement and estimates of cash flow requirements for all purposes.
Prospects for Interest Rates
6.4.13 The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as its treasury advisor and part of
their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. Annex 1
draws together a number of current city forecasts for short term (bank rate) and
longer fixed interest rates. Table 5 gives the Link central view.
Table 5: Link View interest rate forecast – January 2019

Borrowing Requirement
6.4.14 The Council is currently forecasting a marginally under-borrowed position in 2019/20. This
means that the Council’s capital borrowing is lower than the underlying need to borrow.
As a result of the capital expenditure plans set out in 6.2.2, Table 1 the Council is
expected to be maintain an under-borrowed position from 2020/21 onwards as shown in
Table 6 below. This is a prudent strategy as investment returns are low and counterparty
risk is relatively high – this approach will be carefully monitored during 2020/21.
Table 5: Borrowing Position

Under / (Over) Borrowing
External Debt
GF Ext Borrowing
Capital Financing Requirement
Under / (Over) Borrowing

COUNCIL

2019/20
£000

2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

1,513

1,474

1,434

1,395

1,589
75

1,553
80

1,518
84

1,483
88

Page 61

20 FEBRUARY 2020

* The table above excludes leases from the under / over borrowed position, unlike table 2
– Forecasted Portfolio Position.
6.4.15 Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be
adopted with the 2020/21 treasury operations. The Chief Finance Officer will monitor
interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing
circumstances.
6.4.16 The current capital programme funding forecasts for 2020/21 to 2022/23 shows there
is currently no borrowing requirement. However, borrowing needs will be reviewed
as the capital programmes are confirmed. Any decisions will be reported to Overview
& Scrutiny committee at the next available opportunity.
Treasury Management Limits on Activity
6.4.17 There are three debt related treasury activity limits. The purpose of these are to
restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby managing
risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest rates. However, if
these are set to be too restrictive they will impair the opportunities to reduce costs /
improve performance. The indicators are:
 Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum limit for
variable interest rates;
 Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to the previous indicator
and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates;
 Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s
exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for
upper and lower limits.
The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits:
%
Interest Rates Exposure
Borrowing:
Limits on fixed interest rates
Limits on variable interest rates
Investments:
Limits on fixed interest rates
Limits on variable interest rates
Maturity Structure New Borrowing 2019/20
Under 12 months
12 Months and within 2 Years
2 Years and within 5 Years
5 Years and within 10 Years
10 Years and within 15 Years
15 Years and over

2019/20
£’000
Upper

2020/21
£’000
Upper

2021/22
£’000
Upper

100%
5%

100%
5%

100%
5%

100%
50%

100%
50%

100%
50%

Lower
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
90%

Upper
20%
20%
50%
50%
50%
20%

Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need
6.4.18 The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in
COUNCIL

Page 62

20 FEBRUARY 2020

advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates,
and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated
and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.
6.5

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2020/21
Investment Policy – management of risk

6.5.1

The MHCLG and CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include both
financial and non-financial investments. This report deals solely with financial
investments, (as managed by the treasury management team). Non-financial
investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered in the
Capital Strategy

6.5.2 NYCC Pooling Arrangements

6.5.2

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following:  MHCLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”);
 CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross
Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”); and
 CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018.
The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second
and then yield, (return).

6.5.3

The above guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA place a high priority on the
management of risk. The Council has adopted a prudent approach to managing risk
and defines its risk appetite by the following means: a) minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of
highly creditworthy counterparties. This also enables diversification and thus
avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor
counterparties are the short term and long-term ratings;
b) other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an
institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector
on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve this
consideration, the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor
on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information
on top of the credit ratings;
c) other information sources used will include the financial press, share price
and other such information pertaining to the financial sector in order to
establish the most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential
investment counterparties;
d) the Council has defined the list of types of investment instruments that the
treasury management team are authorised to use:-

COUNCIL

Page 63

20 FEBRUARY 2020

 Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality
and subject to a maturity limit of one year.
 Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality,
may be for periods in excess of one year, and/or are more complex
instruments which require greater consideration by members and
officers before being authorised for use. Once an investment is
classed as non-specified, it remains non-specified all the way through
to maturity i.e. an 18 month deposit would still be non-specified even if
it has only 11 months left until maturity.
e) Non-specified investments limit. The Council has determined that it will
limit the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as being 20%
of the total investment portfolio, (£4m);
f)

Lending limits, (amounts and maturity), for each counterparty will be set;

g) the Council will set a limit for the amount of its investments which are
invested for longer than 365 days;
h) investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries with a
specified minimum sovereign rating;
i)

the Council has engaged external consultants, to provide expert advice on
how to optimise an appropriate balance of security, liquidity and yield, given
the risk appetite of the Council in the context of the expected level of cash
balances and need for liquidity throughout the year;

j)

all investments will be denominated in sterling; and

k) as a result of the change in accounting standards for 2019/20 under IFRS 9,
the Council will consider the implications of investment instruments which
could result in an adverse movement in the value of the amount invested and
resultant charges at the end of the year to the General Fund. (In November
2018, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government,
[MHCLG], concluded a consultation for a temporary override to allow English
local authorities time to adjust their portfolio of all pooled investments by
announcing a statutory override to delay implementation of IFRS 9 for five
years commencing from 1.4.18.)
6.5.4 However, the Council will also pursue value for money in treasury management and
will monitor the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks for
investment performance. Regular monitoring of investment performance will be
carried out during the year.
6.5.5 Changes in risk management policy from last year
The above criteria are unchanged from last year.
Credit Worthiness Policy – Security of Capital and use of credit ratings
6.5.6 This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset Services
(Sector). This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit
ratings from all three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moodys and Standard and
Poors. The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following
COUNCIL

Page 64

20 FEBRUARY 2020

overlays:
 Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
 CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings;
 Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy
countries.
(a)

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches, and credit
outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay
of CDS spreads for which the end product is a series of colour code bands,
which indicate the relative creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour
codes are also used by the Council to determine the duration for investments.
The Council will therefore use the counterparties within the following
durational bands:

Colour
Yellow
Purple
Orange
Blue
Red
Green
No Colour

Maximum Investment Duration
5 Years
2 Years
1 Year
1 Year (UK nationalised / semi nationalised banks only)
6 Months
100 Days
No investments to be made

6.5.7 The Link Asset Services creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information
than just primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, does not give
undue preponderance to just one agency ratings. Furthermore, by using a risk
weighted scoring system, it does not give undue preponderance to just one agency’s
ratings.
6.5.8 Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a short term rating
(Fitch or equivalents) of Short Term rating F1, Long Term rating A-. There may be
occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower
than these ratings but may still be used. In these, instances consideration will be
given to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical market information, to
support their use.
6.5.9 All credit ratings will be monitored daily. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings
of all three agencies through its use of the Link Asset Services creditworthiness
service.
 If a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting
the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be with
drawn immediately;
 In addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in
movements in Credit Default Swap against the iTraxx benchmark and other
market data on a weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in
downgrade of an institution or removal from the lending list.
6.5.10 Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition this
Council will also use market data and market information, information on government
support for banks and the credit ratings of that government support.

COUNCIL

Page 65

20 FEBRUARY 2020

UK Banks – Ring-fencing
6.5.11 The largest UK banks, (those with more than £25bn of retail / Small and Mediumsized Enterprise (SME) deposits), are required, by UK law, to separate core retail
banking services from their investment and international banking activities by 1st
January 2019. This is known as “ring-fencing”. Whilst smaller banks with less than
£25bn in deposits are exempt, they can choose to opt up. Several banks are very
close to the threshold already and so may come into scope in the future regardless.
6.5.12 Ring-fencing is a regulatory initiative created in response to the global financial crisis.
It mandates the separation of retail and SME deposits from investment banking, in
order to improve the resilience and resolvability of banks by changing their structure.
In general, simpler activities offered from within a ring-fenced bank, (RFB), will be
focused on lower risk, day-to-day core transactions, whilst more complex and “riskier”
activities are required to be housed in a separate entity, a non-ring-fenced bank,
(NRFB). This is intended to ensure that an entity’s core activities are not adversely
affected by the acts or omissions of other members of its group.
6.5.13 While the structure of the banks included within this process may have changed, the
fundamentals of credit assessment have not. The County Council will continue to
assess the new-formed entities in the same way that it does others and those with
sufficiently high ratings, (and any other metrics considered), will be considered for
investment purposes.
Country Limits
6.5.14 Due care will be taken to consider the exposure of the Council’s total investment
portfolio to non-specified investments, countries, groups and sectors
a) Non-specified investment limit. The Council has determined that it will limit the
maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as being 20% of the total
investment portfolio.
b) Country limit. The Council has determined that it will only use approved
counterparties from the UK and from countries with a minimum sovereign credit
rating of AA- from Fitch. The list of countries that qualify using these credit criteria as
at the date of this report are shown in Annex C. This list will be added to, or
deducted from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy.
Investment Strategy
6.5.15 In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and
cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for
investments up to 12 months). Greater returns are usually obtainable by investing for
longer periods. While most cash balances are required in order to manage daily cash
flow requirements, where cash sums can be identified that could be invested for
longer periods, the value to be obtained from longer term investments will be
carefully assessed: if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly within the time
horizon being considered, then consideration will be given to keeping
most investments as being short term or variable;
 conversely, if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to fall within that time
period, consideration will be given to locking in higher rates currently
obtainable, for longer periods.
Investment returns expectations.
6.5.16 On the assumption that the UK and EU agree a Brexit deal including the terms of
trade by the end of 2020 or soon after, then Bank Rate is forecast to increase only
COUNCIL

Page 66

20 FEBRUARY 2020

slowly over the next few years to reach 1.00% by March 2023. Bank Rate forecasts
for financial year ends are:




Q1 2021 0.75%
Q1 2022 1.00%
Q1 2023 1.00%

6.5.17 For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its notice
accounts, money market funds and short dated deposits (overnight to three months)
in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.
Ethical Investment Opportunities
6.5.18 Investment guidance, both statutory and from CIPFA, makes clear that all investing
must adopt SLY principals – security, liquidity and yield: ethical issues must play a
subordinate role to those principals. Link Asset Services is looking at ways in which
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) metrics may be incorporated into
credit rating agency assessments, and a small but growing number of financial
institutions and fund managers are starting to promote ESG products. However, with
a lack of consistency and coverage, Link Asset services continue to review options in
this area and will update clients as progress is made, which will be brought forward in
future Treasury reporting updates when available.
6.5.19 Within the Council’s current lending criteria, an ethical money market fund is
available to the Council for investment, (details are attached at Annex H) and will
continue to be considered, should favourable return rates become available.
End of Year Investment Report
6.5.20 At the end of the financial year the Council will report on its investment activity as
part of the Annual Treasury Report.
Scheme of Delegation
6.5.21 Please see Annex E.
Role of the section 151 officer
6.5.22 Please see Annex F.
6.6

CAPITAL STRATEGY
The Prudential Code 2017 introduced a new requirement for local authorities to
produce and annual capital strategy. Please refer to Annex G.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The results of the investment strategy affect the funding of the Capital
Programme.
b)

Legal
There are no legal implications regarding this report.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &

COUNCIL

Page 67

20 FEBRUARY 2020

Disorder)
There are no legal implications regarding this report.

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Anton Hodge, Chief Finance Officer (s151)
01653 600666 ext: 392
anton.hodge@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at: None

COUNCIL

Page 68

20 FEBRUARY 2020

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STATEMENT AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY REPORT- RISK
MATRIX – ANNEX A
Issue/Risk

Consequences if allowed
to happen

Page 69

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigation

Mitigated
Likelihood

Mitigated
Impact

Although the economic
climate is improving,
counterparty risk is still a big
issue. As a result the Council
have adopted a stringent
credit rating methodology.
The number of investment
options is kept to a minimum.
Investments are normally
restricted to short term fixed
rate deposits or instant
access accounts.
This Strategy specifies the
type of instrument the
authority is prepared to invest
in and maximum term for
those investments

1

D

2

B

1

B

Credit risk - associated with
investing with financial institutions
that do not meet the credit rating
criteria.

Could mean loss of
principal sum and interest
accrued.

2

D

Market risk - Selection of wrong
type of investment for higher
return.

The poor performance of
the chosen investment.

2

B

Liquidity risk - Use of fixed term
deposits and / or instruments /
investments with low marketability
may mean a lack of liquidity

Unable to take advantage
of better investment
options. Funds are
unavailable to cover capital
spend.

1

B

Score
1
2
3
4
5

Likelihood
Very Low
Not Likely
Likely
Very Likely
Almost Certain

Score
A
B
C
D
E

Impact
Low
Minor
Medium
Major
Disaster

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX B
SPECIFIED AND NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS
SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS:

Investment
Term Deposits with the UK Government or with UK Local Authorities
(as per Local Government Act 2003) with maturities up to 1 year
Term Deposits with credit rated deposit takers (Banks and Building
Societies), including callable deposits with maturities less than 1 year

Page 71

Certificate of Deposits issued by credit rated deposit takers (Banks
and Building Societies) up to 1 year

Forward deals with credit rated Banks and Building Societies less
than 1 year (i.e. negotiated deal plus period of deposit)
Money Market Funds i.e. collective investment scheme as defined in
SI2004 No 534
(These funds have no maturity date)
Gilts (with maturities of up to 1 year)

Bonds issued by a financial institution that is guaranteed by the UK
Government (as defined in SI 2004 No 534) with maturities under 12
months
(Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase)

COUNCIL

Security / Minimum Credit Rating
High security as backed by UK
Government

Circumstances of Use
In-house
In-house

Organisations assessed as having
“high credit quality”within the UK or
from Countries with a minimum
Sovereign rating of AA- for the
country in which the organisation is
domiciled
Funds must be AAA rated

Fund Manager or In-house “buy and hold”
after consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor
In-house
In-house
Limited to £3m

Government Backed

Fund Manager or In-house buy and hold
after consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor

Government Backed

After consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor

20 FEBRUARY 2020

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS
Investment

Circumstances of
Use

Max % of total
investments

Term Deposit with credit rated deposit takers
(Banks & Building Societies), UK Government and
other Local Authorities with maturities greater than 1
year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

100% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£4m)

£1m

5 years

Certificate of Deposit with credit rated deposit
takers (Banks & Building Societies) with maturities
greater than 1 year
Custodial arrangements prior to purchase

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

Fund Manager
or
In-house “buy & hold”
after consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

100% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£4m)

£1m

5 years

Callable Deposits with credit rated deposit takers
(Banks & Building Societies) with maturities greater
than 1 year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

50% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£2m)

£1m

5 years

Term Deposits with Housing Associations with
maturities greater than 1 year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

£1m

5 years

Forward Deposits with a credit rated Bank or
Building Society > 1 year (i.e. negotiated deal period
plus period of deposit)

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of

£1m

5 years

Page 72

Security / Minimum Credit
Rating

COUNCIL

20 FEBRUARY 2020

Maximum
Max.
investment maturity
with any one period
counterparty

Investment

Security / Minimum Credit
Rating

Circumstances of
Use

Max % of total
investments

Maximum
Max.
investment maturity
with any one period
counterparty

Core Cash funds
(£1m)
AA or Government backed

Fund Manager
or
In-house “buy & hold”
after consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

n/a

5 years

Bonds issued by Multilateral development banks
(as defined in SI2004 No534) with maturities in
excess of 1 year
Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase

AA or Government backed

Fund Manager
or
In-house “buy & hold”
after consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

£1m

5 years

UK Government Gilts with maturities in excess
of 1 year
Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase

Government backed

Fund Manager

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

n/a

5 years

Collateralised Deposit

UK Sovereign Rating

In-house

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£1m)

n/a

5 years

Page 73

Bonds issued by a financial institution
that is guaranteed by the UK Government
(as defined in SI2004 No534) with maturities in
excess of 1 year
Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase

This Authority will seek further advice on the appropriateness and associated risks with investments in these categories.
COUNCIL

20 FEBRUARY 2020

ANNEX C
APPROVED COUNTRIES FOR INVESTMENTS
This list is based on those countries which have sovereign ratings of AA- or higher, (we
show the lowest rating from Fitch, Moody’s and S&P) and also, (except - at the time of
writing - for Hong Kong, Norway and Luxembourg), have banks operating in sterling
markets

Sovereign
Rating
AAA

AA+
AA

AA-

COUNCIL

Country
Australia
Canada
Denmark
Germany
Luxemburg
Netherlands
Norway
Singapore
Sweden
Switzerland
Finland
USA
Abu Dhabi (UAE)
France
Hong Kong
UK
Belgium
Qatar

Page 74

20 FEBRUARY 2020

ANNEX D
APPROVED LENDING LIST 2020/21
Maximum sum invested at any time (The overall total exposure figure covers both Specified and
Non-Specified investments)
Country

UK "Nationalised" banks / UK banks with UK Central
Government involvement
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (RFB)
GBR
National
Westminster
PLC
UK "Clearing
Banks",Bank
other
UK(RFB)
based banks and GBR
Building Societies
Santander UK PLC (includes Cater Allen)
GBR
Barclays Bank PLC (NRFB)
Barclays Bank UK PLC (RFB)
Bank of Scotland PLC (RFB)
Lloyds Bank PLC (RFB)
Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets PLC (NRFB)
HSBC Bank PLC (NRFB)
HSBC UK Bank PLC (RFB
Goldman Sachs International Bank
Sumitomo Mitsui
Standard Chartered Bank
Handlesbanken
Nationwide Building Society
Leeds Building Society
High Quality Foreign Banks
National Australia Bank
Commonwealth Bank of Australia

GBR
GBR
GBR
GBR
GBR
GBR
GBR
GBR
GBR

Toronto-Dominion Bank
Credit Industriel et Commercial
Landesbank Hessen-Thueringen Girozentrale
(Helaba)
DBS (Singapore)
Local Authorities
County / Unitary / Metropolitan / District Councils
Police / Fire Authorities
National Park Authorities
Other Deposit Takers
Money Market Funds
UK Debt Management Account

COUNCIL

Specified
Investments
(up to 1 year)

Non-Specified
Investments
(> 1 year £4m limit)

Total
Exposure
£m

Tim e
Lim it *

Total
Exposure
£m

Tim e
Lim it *

4.0

365 days

-

-

3.0

6 months

-

-

4.0

6 months

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3.0

365 days
6 months

1.5

365 days

3.0
1.5

GBR
GBR
GBR

3.0
2.0
2.0

GBR

1.0

6 months
6 months
6 months
365 days
6 months
3 months

AUS
AUS
CAN
FRA
GER

1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5
1.5

365 days
365 days
365 days
6 months
365 days

SING

1.5

365 days

1.0
1.0
1.0

365 days
365 days
365 days

1.0
1.0
1.0

5 years
5 years
5 years

1.0
5.0

365 days
365 days

1.0
1.0

5 years
5 years

Page 75

20 FEBRUARY 2020

ANNEX E

TREASURY MANAGEMENT SCHEME OF DELEGATION
1.

Full Council
 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices and
activities;
 approval of annual strategy.

2.

Policy and Resources Committee
 approval of/amendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses, treasury
management policy statement and treasury management practices;
 budget consideration and approval;
 approval of the division of responsibilities;
 approving the selection of external service providers and agreeing terms of
appointment.

3.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
 reviewing the treasury management policy
recommendations to the responsible body.

COUNCIL

Page 76

and procedures and making

20 FEBRUARY 2020

ANNEX E

THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT ROLE OF THE SECTION 151 OFFICER
Background

1.

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code)
plays a key role in capital finance in local authorities. Local authorities determine
their own programmes for investment that are central to the delivery of quality public
services. The Prudential Code was developed by CIPFA as a professional code of
practice to support local authorities in taking their decisions. Local authorities are
required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code when carrying out their
duties under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003.

2.

In financing capital expenditure, local authorities are governed by legislative
frameworks, including the requirement to have regard to CIPFA’s Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance
Notes.

3.

In order to demonstrate that capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken
in line with service objectives and properly take account of stewardship, value for
money, prudence, sustainability and affordability, the Prudential Code requires
authorities to have in place a Capital Strategy that sets out the long term context in
which capital expenditure and investment decisions are made, and gives due
consideration to both risk and reward and impact on the achievement of priority
outcomes.

4.

The Prudential Code requires the Chief Financial Officer to report explicitly on the
affordability and risk associated with the Capital Strategy. The Capital Strategy

provides an overview of the governance process for approval and monitoring
of capital expenditure. In addition, the Capital Strategy and Prudential
Indicators also demonstrates that the capital expenditure, investment and
financing plans of the Authority are robust, affordable and sustainable.”
The S151 (responsible) officer
The following are specific responsibilities of the Section 151 Officer:


recommending clauses, treasury management policies and practices for approval,
reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance;



submitting regular treasury management policy reports to Members;



submitting budgets and budget variations to Members;



receiving and reviewing management information reports;



reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;



ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective
division of responsibilities within the treasury management function;

COUNCIL

Page 77

20 FEBRUARY 2020



ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;



recommending the appointment of external service providers:



preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, nonfinancial investments and treasury management;



ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in the
long term and provides value for money;



ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority;



ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on nonfinancial assets and their financing;



ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not undertake a
level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of risk compared to
its financial resources;



ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, monitoring
and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long term liabilities



provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including material
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees



ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures
taken on by an authority



ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally
provided



creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non
treasury investments will be carried out and managed

5. “The Capital Strategy provides an overview of the governance process for approval and
monitoring of capital expenditure. In addition, the Capital Strategy and Prudential
Indicators also demonstrate that the capital expenditure, investment and financing plans
of the Authority are robust, affordable and sustainable.”

COUNCIL

Page 78

20 FEBRUARY 2020

ANNEX F

CAPITAL STRATEGY 2019/20

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The purpose of the Capital Strategy is to demonstrate that the Council takes capital expenditure and
investment decisions in line with Corporate and service objectives and properly takes account of
stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability. It sets out the long term
context in which capital expenditure and investment decisions are made and gives due consideration
to both risk and reward and impact on the achievement of priority outcomes.

1.2

The Capital Strategy comprises a number of distinct, but inter-related, elements as follows:
(a)

Capital expenditure (Section 2)

This section includes an overview of the governance process for approval and monitoring of capital
expenditure, including the Council’s policies on capitalisation, and an overview of its capital
expenditure and financing plans.
(b)

Capital financing and borrowing (Section 3)

This section provides a projection of the Council’s capital financing requirement, how this will be
funded and repaid. It therefore sets out the Council’s borrowing strategy and explains how it will
discharge its duty to make prudent revenue provision for the repayment of debt.
(d)

Alternative investments (Section 4)

This section provides an overview of those of the Council’s current and proposed alternative
investment activities that count as capital expenditure, including processes, due diligence and
defining the Council’s risk appetite in respect of these, including proportionality in respect of overall
resources.
(e)

Chief Financial Officer’s statement (Section 5)

This section contains the Chief Financial Officer’s views on the deliverability, affordability and risk
associated with the capital strategy

Page 79

ANNEX F

2.0

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Capitalisation Policy

2.1

Expenditure is classified as capital expenditure when it results in the acquisition or construction of an
asset (e.g. land, buildings, roads and bridges, vehicles, plant and equipment etc.) that:


Will be held for use in the delivery of services, for rental to others, investment or for
administrative purposes; and



Are of continuing benefit to the Council for a period extending beyond one financial year.

Subsequent expenditure on existing assets is also classified as capital expenditure if these two
criteria are met.
2.2

2.3

There may be instances where expenditure does not meet this definition but would be treated as
capital expenditure, including:


Where the Council has no direct future control or benefit from the resulting assets, but
would treat the expenditure as capital if it did control or benefit from the resulting assets;
and



Where statutory regulations require the Council to capitalise expenditure that would not
otherwise have expenditure implications according to accounting rules

The Council operates de-minimis limits for capital expenditure. This means that items below these
limits are charged to revenue rather than capital. The limits are currently as follows:


General Limit:

£10,000

Governance
2.4

Policy & Resources Committee shall, during each financial year and after consultation with the
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee(s), approve a capital expenditure programme for the
next following and subsequent 2 financial years. Such programmes shall be in a form and in
accordance with deadlines approved by the Chief Finance Officer and in accordance with the
Council’s Financial Strategy. Capital expenditure plans shall be prepared in conjunction with the
Chief Finance Officer for submission to The Policy & Resources Committee and then Council for
approval.

2.5

The Council’s Financial and Contract Procedure Rules provide a framework for the appropriate
authorisations for individual schemes to proceed and facilitate the overall management of the Capital
Plan within defined resource parameters.
Capital Expenditure and Funding Plans

2.6

Capital expenditure plans are set out within the Treasury Management Strategy (6.2.2).

Page 80

ANNEX F

2.7

When expenditure is classified as capital expenditure for capital financing purposes, this means
that the Council is able to finance that expenditure from any of the following sources:
(a)

Capital grants and contributions - amounts awarded to the Council in return for past or
future compliance with certain stipulations.

(b)

Capital receipts – amounts generated from the sale of assets and from the repayment of
capital loans, grants or other financial assistance.

(c)

Revenue contributions – amounts set aside from the revenue budget in the
Reserve for Future Capital Funding.

(d)

Borrowing - amounts that the Council does not need to fund immediately from cash
resources, but instead charges to the revenue budget over a number of years into the future.

2.8

The implications of financing capital expenditure from ‘borrowing’ are explained in section 3 below.

3.0

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT AND BORROWING
Context

3.1

The Council is required to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local
Authorities (referred to as the ‘Prudential Code’) when assessing the affordability, prudence and
sustainability of its capital investment plans.

3.2

Fundamental to the prudential framework is a requirement to set a series of prudential indicators.
These indicators are intended to collectively build a picture that demonstrates the impact over time
of the Council’s capital expenditure plans upon the revenue budget and upon borrowing and
investment levels, and explain the overall controls that will ensure that the activity remains
affordable, prudent and sustainable.

3.3

A summary of the actual prudential indicators for 2017/18, and the estimates for
2018/19 through to 2021/22 are provided in the Treasury Management Strategy document..

Capital Financing Requirement
3.4

When capital expenditure is funded from borrowing, this does not result in expenditure being funded
immediately from cash resources, but is instead charged to the revenue budget over a number of
years. It does this in accordance with its policy for the repayment of debt, which is set out in the
Minimum Revenue Policy Statement, within the Treasury Strategy (6.3).

3.5

The forward projections of the CFR reflect:

3.6



There are no capital expenditure requirements from borrowing or further credit
arrangements resulting in an increase to the CFR and



Revenue budget provision being made for the repayment of debt, which results in a
reduction to the CFR).

The actual CFR for 2017/18 and forward projections for the current and forthcoming years are as
follows:

Page 81

ANNEX F

CFR General Fund
CFR GF Leases
Total CFR
Movement in CFR

3.7

2017/18

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Actual

Est.

Est.

Est.

Est.

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

1,659

1,624

1,589

1,553

1,518

388

240

113

25

0

2,047

1,864

1,702

1,579

1,518

-179

-183

-162

-123

-61

The forecast decrease in the CFR shows that there are no current borrowing requirements to fund
capital expenditure, and therefore the gradual reduction reflects the annual minimum revenue
provisions towards the repayment of debt.

External borrowing limits
3.9

The Council is only permitted to borrow externally (including via credit arrangements) up to
the level implied by its Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). To ensure that external
borrowing does not exceed the CFR, other than in the short term, limits are established for
external debt, as follows:


Authorised limit – this defines the maximum amount of external debt permitted by the
Council, and represents the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local
Government Act 2003.



Operational boundary – this is an estimate of the probable level of the Council’s
external debt, and provides the means by which external debt is managed to ensure
that the ‘authorised limit’ is not breached.

3.10 The proposed limits, which are set out in the Treasury Strategy, make separate provision for
external borrowing and other long-term liabilities, and are based upon an estimate of the most
likely but not worst case scenarios. They allow sufficient headroom for fluctuations in the level
of cash balances and in the level of the CFR.
3.11 Alternative investment activities included in the plan are to be classed as capital expenditure.
An Alternative Investments Strategy has not yet been developed and, in the event that major
initiatives are proposed, it may be necessary to review the current borrowing limits.

3.12 The agreed Operational Boundary and Authorised Limits for external debt are as follows:

Operational Boundary

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

2018/19
Estimate
£’000
5,000
500
5,500

2019/20
Estimate
£’000
5,000
500
5,500

Page 82

2020/21
Estimate
£’000
5,000
600
5,600

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
5,000
600
5,600

ANNEX F

Authorised Limit

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

2018/19
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,000
11,000

2019/20
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,000
11,000

2020/21
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,000
11,000

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,000
11,000

Borrowing strategy
3.13 The Councils Borrowing Strategy is set out in the Treasury Strategy document (6.4).
3.14 The Council’s capital borrowing is slightly lower than the underlying need to borrow, and the Council
is expected to be in an under-borrowed position from 2018/19 onwards. This has been a prudent
strategy as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high – this approach will be
carefully monitored during 2019/20.
3.15 The use of internal borrowing has been an effective strategy in recent years as:


Rising cash balances as a result of MRP set aside mean available cash for the medium
to longer term;



It has enabled the Council to avoid significant external borrowing costs; and



It has mitigated significantly the risks associated with investing cash in what has often
been a volatile and challenging market.

3.16 Further long term external borrowing may be undertaken, in excess of the current forecasts, in the
event that it is not possible or desirable to sustain the anticipated internal borrowing position.
3.17 The external borrowing requirement will be kept under review and long term external loans will be
secured within the parameters established by the authorised limit and operational boundary for
external debt, as set out above.
3.18 Opportunities to generate savings by refinancing or prematurely repaying existing long term debt
will also be kept under review. Potential savings will be considered in the light of the current treasury
position and the costs associated with such actions.
Minimum Revenue Provision
3.19 The Council sets cash resources aside from the Revenue Budget each year to repay the borrowing.
This practice is referred to as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) for the repayment of debt.
3.20 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) provides a measure of the amount of capital expenditure
which has been financed from borrowing that the Council yet to fund from cash resources.
3.21 Statutory guidance requires MRP to be provided annually on a prudent basis. In accordance with
the requirement to make a prudent ‘revenue provision for the repayment of debt’, the Council
ensures that debt is repaid over a period that is commensurate with the period over which the capital
expenditure provides benefit. This is achieved by applying the methodology set out within the
Policy. The revenue budget provision for MRP charges in 2019/20 has been compiled on a basis
consistent with this policy

Page 83

ANNEX F

4.0. Alternative Investments
Introduction
4.1

The prolonged low interest rate environment has resulted in reduced returns on treasury
management investments. Moreover, the introduction of the general power of competence has
given local authorities far more flexibility in the types of activity they can engage in. These changes
in the economic and regulatory landscape, combined with significant financial challenges, have led
many authorities to consider different and more innovative types of investment.

4.2

CIPFA recently issued an update to its Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (the Treasury Management Code). One of the main
changes introduced by the new Code is to require authorities to incorporate all of the financial and
non-financial assets held for financial return in authorities’ annual capital strategies.

4.3

Separately, the Department for Communities and Local Government consulted on changes to its
statutory Guidance on Local Authority Investments. As a result, updated Statutory investment
guidance and MRP guidance was issued in 2018. The guidance reinforced the need for commercial
investment activity to be financially sustainable, proportionate to overall resources and the Council
should have access to the appropriate level of expertise to make informed decisions.

4.4

This section of the Capital Strategy will need to be updated if the Council’s own agenda for
commercial investments evolves.

4.5

It is worth highlighting that all commercial investment activities are subject to approval in
accordance with the Council’s governance framework for decision making.

Alternative Investment Objectives
4.6

4.7

The primary objectives of the commercial investment activities:


Security – to protect the capital sums invested from loss; and



Liquidity – ensuring the funds invested are available for expenditure when needed.

The generation of yield is distinct from these prudential objectives. However, once proper levels of
security and liquidity are determined, it is then reasonable to consider what yield can be obtained
consistent with these priorities.

4.8
Non-core activities and investments would primarily be undertaken by the Council in order to
generate income to support the delivery of a balanced budget. Such investments would only be entered
following a full assessment of the risks and having secured expert external advice (i.e. where it is relevant
to do so)
4.9
To ensure that alternative investment plans are financially sustainable, the Council would need to
carefully consider the internal funds available for investment and proportionate risk.
Investment Properties
4.9

Land and buildings may be aquired for investment purposes rather than for the supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Such assets will be classified as Investment Properties.
The council already holds a number of properties in this class, and may wish to consider increasing
its property portfolio.

Page 84

ANNEX F

4.10 Investment properties are measured at their fair value annually (which will ensure the valuation
reflects the market conditions at the end of each reporting period). The fair value measurement will
enable the Council to assess whether the underlying assets provide security for capital investment.
Where the fair value of the underlying assets is no longer sufficient to provide security against loss,
mitigating actions will be considered, to ensure that appropriate action is taken to protect the capital
sum invested.

Loans to Third Parties
4.12 Loans to third parties could be considered, as part of a wider strategy for local economic growth for
example. However they may not all be seen as prudent if adopting a narrow definition of prioritising
security and liquidity.
4.13 Such loans should only be considered when all of the following criteria are satisfied:


The loan is given towards expenditure which would, if incurred by the Council, be capital
expenditure;



The purpose for which the loan is given is consistent with the Council’s corporate /
strategic objectives and priorities;



Due diligence is carried out that confirms the Council’s legal powers to make the loan,
and that assesses the risk of loss over the loan term;



A formal loan agreement is put in place which stipulates the loan period repayment terms
and loan rate (which will be set at a level that seeks to mitigate any perceived risks of a
loss being charged to the General Fund, and takes appropriate account of state aid
rules) and any other terms that will protect the Council from loss;



Prior to any loan being granted, the Council’s own cashflow requirements are reviewed
to ensure that appropriate levels of liquidity will be maintained.

Other Alternative Investment Opportunities
4.14 There are a number of other potential opportunities the Council may want to consider, such as
investment in property funds and other institutions such as Credit Unions. As stated above, this
would need to be considered in the wider context of the Council’s corporate priorities and
appropriate due diligence and approvals sought. Such an investment should be considered as a
capital expenditure decision.

5.0

SECTION 151 OFFICER STATEMENT

Background
5.1

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) plays a key role
in capital finance in local authorities. Local authorities determine their own programmes for
investment that are central to the delivery of quality public services. The Prudential Code was
developed by CIPFA as a professional code of practice to support local authorities in taking their
decisions. Local authorities are required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code when
carrying out their duties under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003.

Page 85

ANNEX F

5.2

In financing capital expenditure, local authorities are governed by legislative frameworks, including
the requirement to have regard to CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes.

5.3

In order to demonstrate that capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line with
service objectives and properly take account of stewardship, value for money, prudence,
sustainability and affordability, the Prudential Code requires authorities to have in place a Capital
Strategy that sets out the long term context in which capital expenditure and investment decisions
are made, and gives due consideration to both risk and reward and impact on the achievement of
priority outcomes.

5.4

The Prudential Code requires the Chief Financial Officer to report explicitly on the affordability and
risk associated with the Capital Strategy. The following are specific responsibilities of the Section
151 Officer:


recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, reviewing
regularly, and monitoring compliance;



submitting quarterly treasury management reports;



submitting quarterly capital budget update reports;



reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;



ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective
division of responsibilities within the treasury management function;



ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;



recommending the appointment of external service providers.



preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, nonfinancial investments and treasury management



ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in the
long term and provides value for money



ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority



ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on nonfinancial assets and their financing



ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not undertake
a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of risk compared
to its financial resources



ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, monitoring
and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long term liabilities



provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including material
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees

Page 86

ANNEX F

5.5



ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures
taken on by an authority



ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally provided



creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non
treasury investments will be carried out and managed

The Capital Strategy provides an overview of the governance process for approval and
monitoring of capital expenditure. These processes are well established and are highly
effective in ensuring delivery of the Authority’s capital investment plans. In addition, the Capital
Strategy and Prudential Indicators also demonstrates that the capital expenditure, investment
and financing plans of the Authority are robust, affordable and sustainable.

Page 87

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX G

CAPITAL STRATEGY 2020/21

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The purpose of the Capital Strategy is to demonstrate that the Council takes capital expenditure
and investment decisions in line with Corporate and service objectives and properly takes account
of stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability. It sets out the long term
context in which capital expenditure and investment decisions are made and gives due
consideration to both risk and reward and impact on the achievement of priority outcomes.

1.2

The Capital Strategy comprises a number of distinct, but inter-related, elements as follows:
(a)

Capital expenditure (Section 2)

This section includes an overview of the governance process for approval and monitoring of capital
expenditure, including the Council’s policies on capitalisation, and an overview of its capital
expenditure and financing plans.
(b)

Capital financing and borrowing (Section 3)

This section provides a projection of the Council’s capital financing requirement, how this will be
funded and repaid. It therefore sets out the Council’s borrowing strategy and explains how it will
discharge its duty to make prudent revenue provision for the repayment of debt.
(d)

Alternative investments (Section 4)

This section provides an overview of those of the Council’s current and proposed alternative
investment activities that count as capital expenditure, including processes, due diligence and
defining the Council’s risk appetite in respect of these, including proportionality in respect of overall
resources.
(e)

Chief Financial Officer’s statement (Section 5)

This section contains the Chief Financial Officer’s views on the deliverability, affordability and risk
associated with the capital strategy

Page 89

ANNEX G

2.0

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Capitalisation Policy

2.1

Expenditure is classified as capital expenditure when it results in the acquisition or construction of
an asset (e.g. land, buildings, roads and bridges, vehicles, plant and equipment etc.) that:


Will be held for use in the delivery of services, for rental to others, investment or for
administrative purposes; and



Are of continuing benefit to the Council for a period extending beyond one financial year.

Subsequent expenditure on existing assets is also classified as capital expenditure if these two
criteria are met.
2.2

2.3

There may be instances where expenditure does not meet this definition but would be treated as
capital expenditure, including:


Where the Council has no direct future control or benefit from the resulting assets, but
would treat the expenditure as capital if it did control or benefit from the resulting
assets; and



Where statutory regulations require the Council to capitalise expenditure that would not
otherwise have expenditure implications according to accounting rules

The Council operates de-minimis limits for capital expenditure. This means that items below
these limits are charged to revenue rather than capital. The limits are currently as follows:


General Limit:

£10,000

Governance
2.4

Policy & Resources Committee shall, during each financial year and after consultation with the
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee(s), approve a capital expenditure programme for the
next following and subsequent 2 financial years. Such programmes shall be in a form and in
accordance with deadlines approved by the Chief Finance Officer and in accordance with the
Council’s Financial Strategy. Capital expenditure plans shall be prepared in conjunction with the
Chief Finance Officer for submission to The Policy & Resources Committee and then Council for
approval.

2.5

The Council’s Financial and Contract Procedure Rules provide a framework for the appropriate
authorisations for individual schemes to proceed and facilitate the overall management of the
Capital Plan within defined resource parameters.
Capital Expenditure and Funding Plans

2.6

Capital expenditure plans are set out within the Treasury Management Strategy (6.2.2).

Page 90

ANNEX G
2.7

When expenditure is classified as capital expenditure for capital financing purposes, this means
that the Council is able to finance that expenditure from any of the following sources:
(a)

Capital grants and contributions - amounts awarded to the Council in return for past or
future compliance with certain stipulations.

(b)

Capital receipts – amounts generated from the sale of assets and from the repayment of
capital loans, grants or other financial assistance.

(c)

Revenue contributions – amounts set aside from the revenue budget in the
Reserve for Future Capital Funding.

(d)

Borrowing - amounts that the Council does not need to fund immediately from cash
resources, but instead charges to the revenue budget over a number of years into the
future.

2.8

The implications of financing capital expenditure from ‘borrowing’ are explained in section 3
below.

3.0

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT AND BORROWING
Context

3.1

The Council is required to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local
Authorities (referred to as the ‘Prudential Code’) when assessing the affordability, prudence and
sustainability of its capital investment plans.

3.2

Fundamental to the prudential framework is a requirement to set a series of prudential indicators.
These indicators are intended to collectively build a picture that demonstrates the impact over
time of the Council’s capital expenditure plans upon the revenue budget and upon borrowing and
investment levels, and explain the overall controls that will ensure that the activity remains
affordable, prudent and sustainable.

3.3

A summary of the actual prudential indicators for 2018/19, and the estimates for
2019/20 through to 2022/23 are provided in the Treasury Management Strategy document..

Capital Financing Requirement
3.4

When capital expenditure is funded from borrowing, this does not result in expenditure being
funded immediately from cash resources, but is instead charged to the revenue budget over a
number of years. It does this in accordance with its policy for the repayment of debt, which is set
out in the Minimum Revenue Policy Statement, within the Treasury Strategy (6.3).

3.5

The forward projections of the CFR reflect:

3.6



There are no capital expenditure requirements from borrowing or further credit
arrangements resulting in an increase to the CFR and



Revenue budget provision being made for the repayment of debt, which results in a
reduction to the CFR).

The actual CFR for 2018/19 and forward projections for the current and forthcoming years are as
follows:

Page 91

ANNEX G

CFR General Fund
CFR GF Leases
CFR Commercial / Nonfinancial investments
Total CFR
Movement in CFR

2018/19
Est.
£000
1,624
240

2019/20
Est.
£000
1,589
323

2020/21
Est.
£000
1,553
609

2021/22
Est.
£000
1,518
780

2022/23
Est.
£000
1,483
590

0

0

0

0

0

1,864
-183

1,912
47

2,162
251

2,298
136

2,073
-225

0

0

0

0

0

-183

47

251

136

-225

-183

48

251

136

-225

Movement in CFR represented by:Net Financing need for the
year
Less MRP & Other
Financing movements
Movement in CFR

3.7

The forecast decrease in the CFR shows that there are no current borrowing requirements to
fund capital expenditure, and therefore the gradual reduction reflects the annual minimum
revenue provisions towards the repayment of debt.

External borrowing limits
3.9

The Council is only permitted to borrow externally (including via credit arrangements) up to
the level implied by its Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). To ensure that external
borrowing does not exceed the CFR, other than in the short term, limits are established for
external debt, as follows:


Authorised limit – this defines the maximum amount of external debt permitted by
the Council, and represents the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the
Local Government Act 2003.



Operational boundary – this is an estimate of the probable level of the Council’s
external debt, and provides the means by which external debt is managed to ensure
that the ‘authorised limit’ is not breached.

3.10 The proposed limits, which are set out in the Treasury Strategy, make separate provision
for external borrowing and other long-term liabilities, and are based upon an estimate of the
most likely but not worst case scenarios. They allow sufficient headroom for fluctuations in
the level of cash balances and in the level of the CFR.
3.11 Alternative investment activities included in the plan are to be classed as capital
expenditure. An Alternative Investments Strategy has not yet been developed and, in the
event that major initiatives are proposed, it may be necessary to review the current
borrowing limits.
3.12 The agreed Operational Boundary and Authorised Limits for external debt are as follows:

Page 92

ANNEX G
Authorised Limit

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

Operational Boundary

Debt
Other long term liabilities
Total

2019/20
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,000
11,000

2019/20
Estimate
£’000
5,000
500
5,500

2020/21
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,500
11,500

2020/21
Estimate
£’000
5,000
1,000
6,000

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,500
11,500

2021/22
Estimate
£’000
5,000
1,000
6,000

2022/23
Estimate
£’000
10,000
1,500
11,500

2022/23
Estimate
£’000
5,000
1,000
6,000

Borrowing strategy
3.13 The Councils Borrowing Strategy is set out in the Treasury Strategy document (6.4).
3.14 The Council’s capital borrowing is slightly lower than the underlying need to borrow, and the Council
is expected to be in an under-borrowed position from 2019/20 onwards. This has been a prudent
strategy as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high – this approach will be
carefully monitored during 2020/21
3.15 The use of internal borrowing has been an effective strategy in recent years as:


Rising cash balances as a result of MRP set aside mean available cash for the
medium to longer term;



It has enabled the Council to avoid significant external borrowing costs; and



It has mitigated significantly the risks associated with investing cash in what has often
been a volatile and challenging market.

3.16 Further long term external borrowing may be undertaken, in excess of the current forecasts, in the
event that it is not possible or desirable to sustain the anticipated internal borrowing position.
3.17 The external borrowing requirement will be kept under review and long term external loans will be
secured within the parameters established by the authorised limit and operational boundary
for external debt, as set out above.
3.18 Opportunities to generate savings by refinancing or prematurely repaying existing long term debt
will also be kept under review. Potential savings will be considered in the light of the current
treasury position and the costs associated with such actions.
Minimum Revenue Provision
3.19 The Council sets cash resources aside from the Revenue Budget each year to repay the
borrowing. This practice is referred to as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) for the
repayment of debt.

Page 93

ANNEX G
3.20 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) provides a measure of the amount of capital
expenditure which has been financed from borrowing that the Council yet to fund from cash
resources.
3.21 Statutory guidance requires MRP to be provided annually on a prudent basis. In accordance with
the requirement to make a prudent ‘revenue provision for the repayment of debt’, the Council
ensures that debt is repaid over a period that is commensurate with the period over which the
capital expenditure provides benefit. This is achieved by applying the methodology set out within
the Policy. The revenue budget provision for MRP charges in 2019/20 has been compiled on a
basis consistent with this policy
4.0. Alternative Investments
Introduction
4.1

The prolonged low interest rate environment has resulted in reduced returns on treasury
management investments. Moreover, the introduction of the general power of competence has
given local authorities far more flexibility in the types of activity they can engage in. These
changes in the economic and regulatory landscape, combined with significant financial
challenges, have led many authorities to consider different and more innovative types of
investment.

4.2

CIPFA recently issued an update to its Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (the Treasury Management Code). One of the main
changes introduced by the new Code is to require authorities to incorporate all of the financial and
non-financial assets held for financial return in authorities’ annual capital strategies.

4.3

Separately, the Department for Communities and Local Government consulted on changes to its
statutory Guidance on Local Authority Investments. As a result, updated Statutory investment
guidance and MRP guidance was issued in 2018. The guidance reinforced the need for
commercial investment activity to be financially sustainable, proportionate to overall resources
and the Council should have access to the appropriate level of expertise to make informed
decisions.

4.4

This section of the Capital Strategy will need to be updated if the Council’s own agenda for
commercial investments evolves.

4.5

It is worth highlighting that all commercial investment activities are subject to approval in
accordance with the Council’s governance framework for decision making.

Alternative Investment Objectives
4.6

4.7

The primary objectives of the commercial investment activities:


Security – to protect the capital sums invested from loss; and



Liquidity – ensuring the funds invested are available for expenditure when needed.

The generation of yield is distinct from these prudential objectives. However, once proper levels
of security and liquidity are determined, it is then reasonable to consider what yield can be
obtained consistent with these priorities.

4.8
Non-core activities and investments would primarily be undertaken by the Council in order to
generate income to support the delivery of a balanced budget. Such investments would only be entered

Page 94

ANNEX G
following a full assessment of the risks and having secured expert external advice (i.e. where it is
relevant to do so)
4.9
To ensure that alternative investment plans are financially sustainable, the Council would need
to carefully consider the internal funds available for investment and proportionate risk.
Investment Properties
4.9

Land and buildings may be aquired for investment purposes rather than for the supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Such assets will be classified as Investment Properties.
The council already holds a number of properties in this class, and may wish to consider
increasing its property portfolio.

4.10 Investment properties are measured at their fair value annually (which will ensure the valuation
reflects the market conditions at the end of each reporting period). The fair value measurement
will enable the Council to assess whether the underlying assets provide security for capital
investment. Where the fair value of the underlying assets is no longer sufficient to provide security
against loss, mitigating actions will be considered, to ensure that appropriate action is taken to
protect the capital sum invested.
Loans to Third Parties
4.12 Loans to third parties could be considered, as part of a wider strategy for local economic growth
for example. However they may not all be seen as prudent if adopting a narrow definition of
prioritising security and liquidity.
4.13 Such loans should only be considered when all of the following criteria are satisfied:


The loan is given towards expenditure which would, if incurred by the Council, be
capital expenditure;



The purpose for which the loan is given is consistent with the Council’s corporate /
strategic objectives and priorities;



Due diligence is carried out that confirms the Council’s legal powers to make the loan,
and that assesses the risk of loss over the loan term;



A formal loan agreement is put in place which stipulates the loan period repayment
terms and loan rate (which will be set at a level that seeks to mitigate any perceived
risks of a loss being charged to the General Fund, and takes appropriate account of
state aid rules) and any other terms that will protect the Council from loss;



Prior to any loan being granted, the Council’s own cashflow requirements are reviewed
to ensure that appropriate levels of liquidity will be maintained.

Other Alternative Investment Opportunities
4.14 There are a number of other potential opportunities the Council may want to consider, such as
investment in property funds and other institutions such as Credit Unions. As stated above, this
would need to be considered in the wider context of the Council’s corporate priorities and
appropriate due diligence and approvals sought. Such an investment should be considered as a

Page 95

ANNEX G
capital expenditure decision, and therefore would form part of the Capital Programme Budget
should an ‘investment’ be supported.

5.0

SECTION 151 OFFICER STATEMENT

Background
5.1

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) plays a key
role in capital finance in local authorities. Local authorities determine their own programmes for
investment that are central to the delivery of quality public services. The Prudential Code was
developed by CIPFA as a professional code of practice to support local authorities in taking their
decisions. Local authorities are required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code when
carrying out their duties under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003.

5.2

In financing capital expenditure, local authorities are governed by legislative frameworks,
including the requirement to have regard to CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public
Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes.

5.3

In order to demonstrate that capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken in line with
service objectives and properly take account of stewardship, value for money, prudence,
sustainability and affordability, the Prudential Code requires authorities to have in place a Capital
Strategy that sets out the long term context in which capital expenditure and investment decisions
are made, and gives due consideration to both risk and reward and impact on the achievement of
priority outcomes.

5.4

The Prudential Code requires the Chief Financial Officer to report explicitly on the affordability and
risk associated with the Capital Strategy. The following are specific responsibilities of the Section
151 Officer:


recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval, reviewing
regularly, and monitoring compliance;



submitting quarterly treasury management reports;



submitting quarterly capital budget update reports;



reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;



ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the effective
division of responsibilities within the treasury management function;



ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;



recommending the appointment of external service providers.



preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing, nonfinancial investments and treasury management



ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in the
long term and provides value for money



ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority

Page 96

ANNEX G

5.5



ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on
non-financial assets and their financing



ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not undertake
a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of risk compared
to its financial resources



ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval, monitoring
and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long term liabilities



provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including material
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees



ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures
taken on by an authority



ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally
provided



creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non
treasury investments will be carried out and managed

The Capital Strategy provides an overview of the governance process for approval and
monitoring of capital expenditure. These processes are well established and are highly
effective in ensuring delivery of the Authority’s capital investment plans. In addition, the
Capital Strategy and Prudential Indicators also demonstrates that the capital expenditure,
investment and financing plans of the Authority are robust, affordable and sustainable.

Page 97

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

PART B:

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO:

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

DATE:

6 FEBRUARY 2020

REPORT OF THE:

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES MANAGER
SIMON COPLEY

TITLE OF REPORT:

TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS 2020-2021

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

FOR INFORMATION TO:

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 JANUARY 2020
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
23 JANUARY 2020

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

This report presents the draft timetable of meetings for 2020-2021 for approval.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

That Council is recommended to approve the timetable of meetings, attached as
Annex A to this report, as a basis for working in 2020-21.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To provide a timetable for all decision making, advisory and overview and scrutiny
meetings for use by Members, officers, the public and other interested parties.

3.2

The meeting of Full Council on 5 December 2019 referred a motion proposing
changes to the Council’s governance arrangements to the Constitution Working
Party, with a request to report back to Council ahead of the Annual Meeting. In the
event that changes to governance arrangements are approved ahead of the Annual
Meeting, an updated timetable of meetings will be submitted. However approval of a
timetable is required in February to confirm dates based on the current arrangements
so that Members and officers can ensure their availability, rooms can be booked and
forward planning of business undertaken.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 99

6 FEBRUARY 2020

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are no significant risks relating to this recommendation.

4.2

Resourcing implications will need to be carefully assessed should consideration be
given to increasing the number of meetings. In addition to Full Council and
committee meetings, there are currently five working parties of Policy and Resources
Committee established or proposed, and three Overview and Scrutiny Task Groups.
Careful planning will be needed around resourcing of working parties and task groups
going forward. Notwithstanding the forthcoming restructure of Corporate Governance
and Finance, Democratic Services staff also need to deal with elections and voter
registration, including any possible snap elections, and other areas of work such as
reviews of the Constitution and Member allowances. Other officers who may be
involved in preparing reports, providing advice and attending meetings will also be
dealing many other areas of work.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

A timetable of meetings is agreed and published for each municipal year. This is an
essential part of making the Council’s decision making process open and accessible
to all interested parties. The timetable of meetings is a working document as
additional meetings can be scheduled, under the Rules of Procedure in the Council’s
Constitution, if and when required to deal with business that has arisen. The legal
requirement to publish a public notice of meeting supports transparency and
accessibility for any additional meetings. Strategic Management Board have been
consulted on the draft timetable of meetings for 2020-2021.

REPORT
6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The draft timetable of meetings, attached as Annex A of the report, has been based
on the meeting cycle used in 2019-20.

6.2

Mondays have been kept free of meetings as this is when the majority of parish and
town councils meet. Also no meetings have been scheduled to coincide with Maundy
Thursday (1 April 2021) and the Ryedale Show (28 July 2020).

6.3

Members have the option to approve, amend or reject the draft timetable of meetings
attached at Annex A. If the current draft timetable is not acceptable to Members, an
alternative will need to be agreed.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The costs of meetings within the Council are built into existing budgets.
b)

Legal
None.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and
Climate Change, Crime & Disorder)
An equality impact assessment was carried out three years ago when start times
to meetings were reviewed. As no changes are proposed to the number of

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 100

6 FEBRUARY 2020

meetings, the climate change impact will be unchanged from previous years.
Implications relating to staffing resources are detailed in the paragraph 4.2 of the
report.
8.0

NEXT STEPS

8.1

Once the timetable of meetings has been approved it will be published on the
Council’s website using the Modern.gov committee management system.

Simon Copley
Democratic Services Manager
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Simon Copley, Democratic Services Manager
01653 600666 ext: 43277
simon.copley@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

Page 101

6 FEBRUARY 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS MAY 2020 TO MAY 2021
COMMITTEE
Council
Policy & Resources

MAY
2020
14*

JUN

JULY

AUG

25

28

30

Overview & Scrutiny
(Including Audit)
Planning Committee and
Licensing Committee

11

Parish Liaison Meeting

17

9

SEPT

OCT

3

8

NOV

4

Member Development****

JAN
2021

3

24

29
(Wed)
7

DEC

19

2 (Wed)
&
29
16

27

24

9

14

15

2

APR

MAY

Day

1

20*

Thurs

18

21

11

25

22

19

16

16

13

9
11

MAR

18 &
25**
4

12
1 & 22

FEB

Thurs

3
13***

10

7

Thurs
11

Tues
(6pm)
Wed
(7pm)
Wed

Page 103

All meetings start at 6.30pm unless otherwise indicated.
NOTES

* Annual Council at 3 pm
** Reserve date for business not transacted on 18 February 2021
*** Budget Briefing
Working Parties and Sub-Committees will meet as business requires
The Constitution Working Party must meet at least once a year
****Member development dates may be subject to change following discussions between the Member
Development Task Group and the Strategic Management Board
Scheduled Elections

North Yorkshire County Council Election

-

Thursday 6 May 2021

Bank Holidays
Spring Bank Holiday
Late Summer Bank Holiday
Christmas Bank Holiday
New Year’s Day Holiday
Council Offices closed
Easter
May Day

-

Monday 25 May 2020
Monday 31 August 2020
Friday 25 & Monday 28 December 2020
Friday 1 January 2021
Friday 25 December 2020 to Sunday 3 January 2021 inclusive
Friday 2 April and Monday 5 2021
Monday 3 May 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

O&S Work Plan
Date of Meeting

Committee

OS/Au

Service Area

Report Title

February
13-Feb-20

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Customer Services

Safer Ryedale progress with Delivering the Community Safety Plan

13-Feb-20

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Customer Services

Customer Complaints and Compliments Q3 2019/20

13-Feb-20

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Democratic Services

Scrutiny Review Progress Report

13-Feb-20

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Democratic Services

Review of Workplan

26-Mar-20

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Democratic Services

Review of Workplan

26-Mar-20

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Democratic Services

Scrutiny Review Progress Report

26-Mar-20

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Deputy Chief
Executive

Performance Report Q3

23-Apr-20

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Report 2019/20

23-Apr-20

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Internal Audit, Counter Fraud and Information Governance Plans 2020-21

23-Apr-20

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Grant Thornton Audit Progress Report and Sector Guidance

23-Apr-20

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Delivery & Frontline
Services

Progress on implementation of Recommendations of the Climate Change Scrutiny Review

23-Apr-20

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Democratic Services

Review of Workplan

March

Page 105

April

Agenda Item 13

1 of 1

This page is intentionally left blank

